Student Name:	Grade:	Advisor:	

Concrete High School

Grades 7-12



Student Handbook 2023-2024

www.concrete.k12.wa.us

Welcome to Concrete High School!

We support a diverse group of learners who are growing in competence, character, and sense of community by actively adhering to those principles that exemplify a safe and civil school. In the following pages, we hope you will find answers to many of your questions about your school and about what is expected of a Concrete Lion. We hope this will be a great year for you! Let's start by looking at those qualities which each student will need to be successful in school and in life. For more information about our school or the various programs, please visit our website at: www.concrete.k12.wa.us

Table of Contents

Mission, Vision, and Goals	3
Contact Information	4
Attendance Policy	6
Bus Rules and Procedures	8
Behavior Expectations & Discipline Policy	11
Due Process Statement	20
General Handbook Information	22
Grades	35
Graduation Requirements	36
Behavioral Norms	48
Annual Notification to Parents - Confidentiality of Student Records	49
Educational Programs	51
Parents Rights to Know	F.F.
Legal Notices	55
Student Rights and Responsibilities	54
Title I—Parental Involvement	55
Technology Use Agreement	56
Parent Agreement	57
Equal Opportunity	58
Sexual Harassment	59
Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying (HIB)	60

Mission, Vision, and Goals

CONCRETE SCHOOL DISTRICT

MISSION STATEMENT

"We are committed to whole student development by providing a wide range of educational options to support diverse life choices."

CONCRETE HIGH SCHOOL - GRADES 7-12

VISION STATEMENT

"Sharing responsibility for learning in a positive environment."

Specifically, Concrete High School envisions the following:

- Extending education beyond the classroom-partnerships within the community, business place, and out of doors.
- Aligning the 7-12 curriculum, to prepare students for the work force, the military, community colleges, technical colleges, and four-year universities.
- Continuing to develop a performance-based education system where each student demonstrates competence and progress.
- Emphasizing citizenship, leadership and community service learning.
- Increasing the use of current technology in all facets of a student's education.

MISSION STATEMENT

"Concrete High School is in partnership with the community to provide a safe, nurturing environment that prepares students with the knowledge, skills, attitudes, and ethics to continue a life of learning and to contribute productively in a diverse society."

CONCRETE HIGH SCHOOL PERSONNEL (7-12)

PHONE: 360-853-4015

Admin. Personnel	FHONE. 360-653-4015		Email
Laura Fead	Principal	4018	Ifead@concrete.k12.wa.us
Melissa Rigdon	Athletics/ASB	4158	mrigdon@concrete.k12.wa.us
Michelle Brisson	Registrar/Attendance	4157	mbrisson@concrete.k12.wa.us
Randy Sweeney	Athletic Director	4154	rsweeney@concrete.k12.wa.us
Counselors			
Kirstin Brooks	Counseling and Guidance	4025	kbrooks@concrete.k12.wa.us
Steve Londino	Substance Abuse Student Advocate Professional	4041	mmetcalf@concrete.k12.wa.us
Michelle Stibbs	Mental Health Counselor	4045	mstibbs@concrete.k12.wa.us
Teachers			
Zack Adams	7-8 Math/Science	4015	zadams@concrete.k12.wa.us
Becky Bisagna	7-12 Special Programs - Functional Academics	4015	rbisagna@concrete.k12.wa.us
Sacha Buller	7-12 Science	4015	sbuller@concrete.k12.wa.us
Doug Camp	7-12 Music	4015	dcamp@concrete.k12.wa.us
Melissa Haklitch	7-9 ELA/Social Studies	4015	mhaklitch@concrete.k12.wa.us
Claus Joens	7-12 CTE Business Applications	4015	<u>cjoens@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Jim Newby	7-12 CTE PE & 7-12 Woodshop	4015	jnewby@concrete.k12.wa.us
Dan Peterson	7-12 Special Programs	4015	<u>dpeterson@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Rachel Reese	9-12 English Language Arts	4015	rreese@concrete.k12.wa.us
Kirstin Rider	7-12 Special Programs	4015	<u>krider@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Paul Rider	7-12 CTE Art, Illustration, Yearbook	4015	<u>prider@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Elliott Weyand	7-8 CTE Science/Math/STEM	4015	eweyand@concrete.k12.wa.us
Sarabeth Smith	7-8 Social Studies/ELA	4015	ssmith@concrete.k12.wa.us
Cheri VanWagoner	7-12 Spanish, Algebra I-II, Geometry	4015	cvanwagoner@concrete.k12.wa.us
Brandon Wright	7-12 CWP, US History, World History	4015	<u>bwright@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Debbie Zeiser	7-12 CTE Health, Culinary Arts, ASB	4015	dzeiser@concrete.k12.wa.us
Para Educators			
Chris Bisbee	7-12 Classroom/Para-educator	4015	cbisbee@concrete.k12.wa.us
Carlee Brigham	7-12 Classroom/Para-educator	4015	cbrigham@concrete.k12.wa.us
Tracie Meacham	7-12 Classroom/Para-educator	4015	tmeacham@concrete.k12.wa.us
Michelle Rooks	7-12 Classroom/Para-educator	4015	mrooks@concrete.k12.wa.us
Nurse			
Rhiannon Burton	School Nurse	4023	rburton@concrete.k12.wa.us
Food Services			
Marla Reed	Food Services/Transportation	4035	mreed@concrete.k12.wa.us
Desiree Bauer	Head Cook	4035	
Tammy Gentry	Cook	4035	
Custodians			
Donna Litke	High School Daytime Custodian	4015	<u>dlitke@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Ray Davis	High School Nighttime Custodian	4015	rdavis@concrete.k12.wa.us

Concrete School District

45389 Airport Way, Concrete, WA 98237 **Phone:** 360-853-4000 **Fax:** 360-853-4004

Office Personnel	Position	Phone	Email
Carrie Crickmore	Interim Superintendent	853-4000	ccrickmore@concrete.k12.wa.us
Lynda Stout	District Secretary	853-4155	<u>lstout@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Lisa Finley	Business Manager	853-4003	<u>lfenley@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Shirley Moody	Payroll	853-4156	smoody@concrete.k12.wa.us
Nathaniel Martin	Technology Director	853-4006	nmartin@concrete.k12.wa.us
Alex Aiken	Tech. Support	853-4006	<u>aaiken@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Athletics			
Randy Sweeney	Athletic Director	853-4154	rsweeney@concrete.k12.wa.us
Melissa Rigdon	Athletics/ASB	853-4158	mrigdon@concrete.k12.wa.us
Special Services			
Kristen Fairbank	Special Programs	853-4008	kfairbank@concrete.k12.wa.us
Maintenance			
Paul Carter	Maintenance	853-8125	
Randy Sweeney	Groundskeeper	853-8125	rsweeney@concrete.k12.wa.us
Transportation			
Paul Carter	Director of Maintenance and Transportation Director	853-4072	pcarter@concrete.k12.wa.us
Marla Reed	Co-Transportation Director		
Alternative Ed.			
Laura Fead	Director	853-4015	<u>Ifead@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>

ASB Advisors	Role/Grade Level	Email
Debbie Zeiser	ASB – General Advisor	<u>dzeiser@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Elliott Weyand	7th Grade Advisor	eweyand@concrete.k12.wa.us
Melissa Haklitch	8th Grade Advisor	mhaklitch@concrete.k12.wa.us
TBD	9th Grade Advisor	
Sacha Buller	10th Grade Advisor	sbuller@concrete.k12.wa.us
TBD	11 th Grade Advisor	
Cheri VanWagoner	12 th Grade Advisor	cvanwagoner@concrete.k12.wa.us
Desirae Bauer	Concessions Manager	dbauer@concrete.k12.wa.us

CHS Coaching Staff	Program	Email
Stephanie Henning	Boy's & Girl's Cross Country	shenning@concrete.k12.wa.us
Tracie Meacham	Cheerleading	tmeacham@concrete.k12.wa.us
Patrick Slimane	Football	<u>pslimane@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Kevik Rensink	Volleyball	krensink@concrete.k12.wa.us
Levi Stewart	Boys Basketball	<u>lstewart@concrete.k12.wa.us</u>
Kevik Rensink	Girls Basketball	krensink@concrete.k12.wa.us
Riley Fichter	Wrestling	rfichter@concrete.k12.wa.us
Elliot Weyand	Baseball	eweyand@concrete.k12.wa.us
Stephanie Henning	Softball	shenning@concrete.k12.wa.us
Rob Thomas	Boy's & Girl's Track	rthomas@concrete.k12.wa.us

ATTENDANCE POLICY

Consistent with WAC 180-40-010, students are responsible for daily attendance in all classes. If absent, the student is responsible for submitting a note or having the parent call the high school office at 853-4015 within 48 hours of the absence.

ABSENCE DEFINITION

A student is considered absent when he or she is more than 30 minutes late to class. Note the following descriptions:

Excused Absences include illness, family emergencies, medically related appointments, pre-arranged vacation activities with parents, juvenile court appearances, and other activities with prior administrative approval. For every excused absence, teachers will give students three days to make up work. If an assigned date for extended projects is set prior to unit starting, and the student is made aware, the student will be expected to complete the project by the specific date.

Unexcused Absences include absences without excuse, skipping, or when a student fails to submit a note or parent phone call within the time limit of reporting an absence. Teachers can impose a loss of points for projects, assignments, quizzes/tests/exams, and participation as outlined in their syllabus.

School-related absences include in-school appointments and meetings, field trips, athletic trips, and suspensions. Students must obtain a field trip form from their teachers for planned and extended school-related absences, and they must have their forms signed by their parents prior to departure.

BECCA LAW AND UNEXCUSED ABSENCES

The attendance office, administrators, and counselors will ensure that Concrete High School complies with the state truancy law, RCW 28A 225 (Becca Law). The law requires parents to ensure their students attend school and to provide valid justification to the school when their student is absent.

State law (Becca) says that after seven (7) unexcused absences in a calendar month, or ten (10) unexcused absences over the course of a school year, the school district must file a petition with the juvenile court system requesting the court to take action will compel the student to attend school.

POTENTIAL LOSS OF CREDIT

In order to fulfill the credit requirements for a class, a student must be in attendance in each class period eighty-one (81) days of the ninety (90) day semester except for school sponsored activities (interscholastic athletic events, field trips, etc.) and suspension days. Students who have accumulated more than nine (9) absences will be in jeopardy of not receiving credit for the class. If students or parents feel that extenuating circumstances have caused their absences, they may appeal their case to the principal for consideration.

APPEAL PROCESS WHEN CREDITS ARE DENIED

a) The decision to deny credit may be appealed by the student or the parents. The request for an appeal hearing must be submitted to the principal, orally or in writing, by the end of the 10th school day after the receipt of the notice of opportunity for a hearing.

- b) If a request for a hearing is received within the required 10 days, the principal or designee shall schedule a hearing within three (3) school days. The person appealing the decision will be notified of the hearing date in writing. The appeal hearing committee consists of the principal and two certificated teachers.
- c) The student is to continue attending classes until the appeal is resolved.

TWENTY-DAY WITHDRAWAL

Any student absent for 20 consecutive days must be deleted from school rolls. Parent/Guardian will be notified by mail.

CHECKING IN AND OUT OF SCHOOL

Unless a student receives permission from the principal or his/her designee, students are not permitted to leave the school while it is in session (this applies to all students including upper class students who are 18 years of age). If a student is arriving late to school, or if it is necessary for a student to leave the school during the day, the parent must come to the office and sign their student in or out. Students may also present a note to check in or out that his or her parent or guardian has signed. This note shall give the reason for the request. School officials will count as an absence the portion of the school day missed.

MAKE-UP WORK AND HOMEWORK REQUESTS

Students have the right to make up work after an excused absence. It is the student's responsibility to get make-up assignments from teachers and to do them in a timely manner. Teachers are not required to allow students to make up work for unexcused absences. For every excused absence, teachers will give students three days to make up work. If an assigned date for extended projects is set prior to unit starting, and the student is made aware, the student will be expected to complete the project by the specific date. Homework requests are available, with 24 hours notification, for students who will be absent for 3 or more days. Students and Parents are encouraged to email or call teachers directly for homework requests for 1 or 2 days of absence.

SKIPPING/TRUANCY

If a student is not in class while school is in session and does not have a note from a teacher or other school official, he/she is skipping and will be assigned a logical consequence. Skipping is an unexcused absence.

STAYING AFTER SCHOOL

All students are to go home immediately after the regular school day. Exceptions to this rule are made for students staying after school if requested by a teacher, participating in the Boys and Girls program, or participation in supervised activities that take place after school with parent/guardian permission (i.e. sports, clubs, etc.).

TARDY POLICY

A student is tardy to class if they are not in their assigned seat in their assigned classroom when the bell rings. The teacher is to mark all tardies in the attendance system. Tardies are disruptive to the classroom and are subject to the following progressive discipline (including parent notification):

Student Name:	Grade:	Advisor:	

1ST LEVEL: CHS Tardy/Hall Pass Punch Card –Each student will be issued a tardy punch card for the semester. Each time a student is tardy or needs to leave the classroom to use the restroom, go to their locker, etc. this card must be presented to the teacher to be punched. Once all the punches are gone the student will not be allowed to leave the classroom. IF the student is habitually tardy the student will be referred to the office to meet with the attendance clerk to develop an attendance/tardy plan. Progressive discipline will be followed; parents will be contacted; and may also involve the student being placed on an attendance/tardy contract.

2nd LEVEL: Student Interventions

1st tardy	Warning
-----------	---------

2nd tardy Teacher Detention

3rd tardy Lunch Detention & call parent

4th tardy After school detention & counselor referral

5th tardy RTI & Attendance/Tardy Contract

NOTE: When students are on a 90 minute block schedule the passing time has been increased to 10 minutes to provide enough time for students to take a break and be able to take care of their needs between block periods. Ten minutes is ample time for students to be able to report to class on time.

When is late too late? (Tardy turns into an absence)

When a student arrives more than thirty (30) minutes late to class, depending on circumstances, it may also be considered an unexcused absence for that class. If a student is detained by the office, a staff member, or another teacher, he or she will request a note and present it to the teacher upon entering the room tardy.

BUS RULES AND PROCEDURES

If a student wishes to get off at another stop or ride another bus to go home with a friend a bus pass must be obtained in the high school office by bringing a note from a parent or guardian. In order to pick up their children and not have them ride the bus, parents need to arrive at the school before bus time. Parents who approach a bus driver to take their children from the bus MUST HAVE A PASS. Remember this is for your children's safety. Please do not try to meet the bus along the route to retrieve your children-the bus driver cannot allow children to leave the bus, except at their own stop.

The driver is in full charge of the bus and passengers at all times. WAC392-145-015 All CSD rules and regulations apply while students are being transported to and from school or participation in school related events.

PRIOR TO LOADING

- Students should arrive at the bus stop five minutes prior to expected arrival time of the bus.
- While at the bus stop, students are to remain at a safe distance from the bus until it is stopped.
- Students will refrain from pushing, shoving, striking or engaging in other unsafe activities while on or near the bus.
- Students must cross only in front of the bus, never behind it.

WHILE ON THE BUS

- Students will remain seated while the bus is in motion and are not to stand until the bus has come to a complete stop.
- A student may be assigned a seat by the bus driver.
- No student will tamper with bus equipment or controls. Students are not allowed to sit in the driver's seat or be in the driver area.
- No student will smoke, ignite matches or lighters, or use any type of flame or sparking device on the bus, including vaping, vape pens, or paraphernalia.
- No eating or drinking on the bus.
- Bus windows are to remain closed unless permission is granted by bus driver to open them. Students are not to extend head, hands, and arms out of the windows whether the bus is in motion or not.
- Students must refrain from throwing objects on the bus, at the bus, or out of the bus window.
- Students are to assist in keeping the bus clean.
- Students will refrain from using vulgar, obscene or abusive language and/or gestures.
- Items that may cause injury to others, such as sharp objects, breakable containers, any type of firearms, straps or pins extending from clothing are not allowed on the bus. No animals are allowed on the bus, except service dogs.
- Each student must see that his/her books and personal belongings are kept out of the aisle. Special permission must be granted to transport large items.
- Students must not yell/scream on the bus. Conversation must not exceed classroom expectation levels.

LEAVING THE BUS

- Students disembarking the bus must move away quickly and safely. Do not run after the bus when it has started to move.
- Students must watch the driver for a signal before crossing the roadway.

BUS DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES

Riding a school bus is a privilege not a right. When a student's behavior causes an unsafe condition for other students or jeopardizes the safe operation of the school bus, disciplinary action becomes necessary. The seriousness of the action by the student will determine if a conduct report will be filed. Safety for all our students and bus drivers is our number one concern.

Disciplinary action resulting in suspension of bus riding privileges will cause the parents of the student to be inconvenienced because of the need to transport their own student. Students are not excused from attending school because they have been suspended from the bus. It is our expectation that students will make following the bus rules a habit. CSD Transportation is a privilege for students, not a right and may be denied for behavior or safety reasons. The following examples are considered unacceptable conduct and are classified as minor or major infractions for the purpose of administering school bus disciplinary action.

MINOR INFRACTIONS (GENERAL MISCONDUCT)

- Creating loud or disturbing noises
- Eating or drink on the bus
- Using vulgar or obscene language and/or gestures
- Littering on the bus
- Failure to keep aisle clear (continued next page)

- Boarding or leaving a bus, except assigned stop, without proper approval
- Riding other than assigned bus without proper approval
- Opening windows without driver's permission

MAJOR INFRACTIONS (VIOLATIONS AFFECTING HEALTH/SAFETY)

- Pushing, shoving, or striking other passengers
- Tampering with bus controls or equipment
- Sitting in the driver's seat
- Extending body parts out the window
- Use/possession of alcohol, tobacco, or other illegal drugs
- Throwing objects out the window
- Refusing to comply with driver's instructions promptly
- Destruction of property
- Boarding the bus with any type of weapon

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS ON THE SCHOOL BUS

MINOR INFRACTIONS:

When a student's misconduct is of minor nature that does not jeopardize the safety or welfare of others or the operation of the bus, the bus driver talks to the student about inappropriate behavior. The driver may contact the parents at the time to discuss the problem. Elementary students, at the discretion of the Building Administrator and Transportation Supervisor, may have the opportunity to reduce the report number when followed by extended periods of acceptable behavior on the bus. When repeated verbal warnings and driver contact with parents fail to correct the misbehavior, the following written action occurs:

1st Report:	a warning; stud		

Supervisor.

2nd Report: 1-day bus suspension. Student conference with Bus Transportation

Supervisor. Parents can request to attend the conference.

<u>3rd Report:</u> 3-day bus suspension. Parents will be notified by mail/telephone call. They

must schedule a conference with the Building Administrator,

Transportation Supervisor and bus driver. Time allowed for parents to receive the mail and call for an appointment is 5 days from the mailing date of the notice. If parents fail to respond, the student will serve the 3-

day suspension.

4th Report: 10-day suspension. Shows chronic misbehavior. Parents will be notified by

mail/telephone call of a scheduled conference. They must schedule a conference with the Building Administrator, Transportation Supervisor and bus driver. Time allowed for parents to receive the mail and call for the scheduled appointment is 5 days from the mailing date of the notice. If parents fail to respond, the student will serve the 10-day suspension.

5th Report: 30-day suspension. Shows chronic misbehavior. Students will be

suspended from the bus immediately upon notification of the parent.

Conference to be arranged by the parent.

6th Report: Suspension of bus riding privileges for the remainder of the school year.

MAJOR INFRACTIONS:

1st Report: 3-day suspension. Parents will be notified by telephone call of the

infraction. The student cannot return to riding the bus without a

conference.

2nd Report: 10-day suspension. Parents will be notified by telephone call of the

infraction. The student cannot return to riding the bus without a

conference. Shows chronic misbehavior.

3rd Report: 30-day suspension. Parents will be notified by telephone call of the

infraction. The student cannot return to riding the bus without a

conference.

4th Report: Suspension of bus riding privileges for the remainder of the school year.

NOTE: As district transportation is a privilege, bus suspensions are not counted as excused

absences and may affect a student's attendance.

EMERGENCY ACTION:

If any student's behavior is such a nature that his/her continued presence would, in the judgment of the driver, endanger the health or safety of others, the bus will be halted until the problem is resolved or the student is removed from the bus by District authorities.

CONCRETE HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOR EXPECTATIONS

STUDENT CONDUCT EXPECTATIONS AND REASONABLE SANCTIONS PROCEDURE 3240P

The board acknowledges that conduct and behavior is closely associated to learning. An effective instructional program requires a wholesome and orderly school environment. The board requires that each student adhere to the rules of conduct and submit to corrective action taken as a result of conduct violations. The rules of conduct are applicable during the school day as well as during any school activity conducted on or off campus. Special rules are also applicable while riding on a school bus. Students are expected to:

- A. Conform to reasonable standards of acceptable behavior
- B. Respect the rights, person and property of others
- C. Pursue the required course of study
- D. Preserve the degree of order necessary for a positive climate for learning
- E. Comply with district rules and regulations
- F. Submit to the authority of staff and reasonable discipline imposed by school employees and respond accordingly.

RESPECT FOR THE LAW AND THE RIGHTS OF OTHERS

The student is responsible as a citizen to observe the laws of the United States, the state of Washington, and/or its subdivisions. While in the school, the student shall respect the rights of others. Students who involve themselves in criminal acts on school property, off school property at school-supervised events, or off school property — and which acts have a detrimental effect upon the maintenance and operation of the schools or the district — are subject to disciplinary action by the school and prosecution under the law.

Compliance with Rules

Students shall comply with all rules adopted by the district. Failure to do so shall be cause for corrective action. The rules shall be enforced by school officials:

- On the school grounds during and immediately before or immediately after school hours,
- On the school grounds at any other time when the school is being used by a school group(s), or
- Off the school grounds at a school activity, function, or event, or
- Off the school grounds if the actions of the student materially or substantially effect the educational process.

Alteration of Records and Cheating

Alteration of records A student who falsifies, alters, destroys a school record or any communication between home and school shall be subject to corrective action.

Cheating Any student who knowingly submits work of others represented as his/her own shall be considered to have cheated. Cheating also includes the aiding and abetting of cheating by others.

Attendance

A student shall not be absent or tardy from classes without an approved excuse. Such a student shall be subject to corrective action or punishment.

Alcohol, Chemical Substances and Tobacco Products

A student shall not knowingly possess, use, transmit, be under the influence of, or show evidence of having used any alcoholic beverage, illegal chemical substance or opiate, or tobacco product.

Disruptive Conduct

A student shall not intentionally cause a substantial and material disruption of any school operations. The following illustrate the kinds of offenses that are prohibited:

- A. Occupying a school building or school grounds in order to deprive others of its use;
- B. Blocking the entrance or exit of any school building or room in order to deprive others of passing through
- C. Setting fire to or substantially damaging school property
- D. Using, or threatening to use, firearms, explosives or other weapons on the school premises, including use by an unauthorized student of a personal protection spray device, or use of such de-vice in other than self-defense as defined by state law;
- E. Preventing students from attending a class or school activity
- F. Blocking normal pedestrian or vehicular traffic on a school campus
- G. Interfering seriously with the conduct of any class or activity; and
- H. Gambling or encouraging other students to gamble.

<u>Damage or Theft of Property</u>

A student shall not intentionally or with gross carelessness damage school or private property.

Extortion, Assault or Causing Physical Injury

A student shall not extort anything of value, threaten injury or attempt to cause physical injury or intentionally behave in such a way as could reasonably be expected to cause physical injury to any person.

Gang Activity

A student shall not knowingly engage in gang activity on school grounds. A gang is a group of three or more persons with identifiable leadership which, on an ongoing basis, regularly conspires and acts in concert mainly for criminal purposes.

Leaving Campus During School Hours

A student shall not leave the school campus during the school day unless excused by the school office.

Loitering

A student shall be expected to leave the school campus at the official close of the school day unless permission to do otherwise has been granted.

Vulgar or Lewd Conduct

Any lewd, indecent or obscene act or expression is prohibited.

Weapons and Dangerous Instruments

A student shall not possess or transmit any object that can reasonably be considered a firearm, air gun or a dangerous weapon. Violation of this rule with a firearm shall result in an emergency removal and immediate investigation, unless modified by the superintendent. Students over eighteen years of age and students between fourteen and eighteen years of age with written parental or guardian permission may possess personal protection spray devices. No one under eighteen years of age may transmit such devices, nor may they be used other than in self-defense as defined by state law. Possession, transmission or use of personal protection spray devices under any other circumstances is a violation of this rule.

DISCIPLINE POLICY

All students shall obey the board policy, administrative procedures, school rules, and regulations and directives from district personnel. Failure to comply with rules and regulations established for the governing of the school district shall constitute sufficient cause for discipline (corrective action, exclusion, or detention), suspension (short term or long term), or emergency removal. Methods of student control for misconduct generally shall be progressive in nature with the exception of exceptional misconduct.

TYPICAL MINOR VIOLATIONS (TEACHER MANAGED)

- Academic dishonesty/plagiarism, cell phone/electronics violations, cheating and plagiarism, classroom disruptions, defiance, disrespect, disruptive conduct, inappropriate conduct/language, horseplay/unsafe behavior, dress code violations, public displays of affection, physical contact, property misuse, tardiness, unprepared for class, etc.

TYPICAL OFFICE MANAGED VIOLATIONS

- Serious violation of personal space
- Students in an unauthorized area
- Extreme classroom disruption
- Extreme disrespect/rudeness directed toward any adult/staff member
- Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Racial or Gender Slurs, Verbal Assault
- Vandalism, Theft
- Fighting or Physical Assault
- Tobacco Possession or Use
- Drug/Alcohol/Vape Paraphernalia Possession or Use
- Dangerous Weapons on Campus, Shooting or Bomb Threats, Arson

EXCEPTIONAL MISCONDUCT

"Exceptional misconduct" is that misconduct which the school district determines to (a) be of such frequent occurrence, notwithstanding past attempts of district personnel to control such misconduct through the use of disciplinary actions, as to warrant an immediate resort to suspension or emergency removal and/or (b) be so serious in nature and/or so serious in terms of the disruptive effect upon the operation of the schools as to warrant an immediate resort to suspension or emergency removal.

Disciplinarians and hearing officers may grant exceptions in cases involving extenuating circumstances. Exceptional misconduct includes:

- Possession, use, or being under the influence of alcohol or any controlled substance or substance purported to be a controlled substance, excluding tobacco, not prescribed by a physician for such possessor or user.
- Possession, use or administration of oral medication (other than a controlled substance or substance purported to be a controlled substance), whether prescribed or non-prescribed, with the exception of asthmatic inhalants, without district authorization in accordance with district policy.
- Distribution (delivery and/or sharing) of alcohol or any controlled substance or substance purported to be a controlled substance, excluding tobacco, not prescribed by a physician for such user, with another person.
- Distribution/selling of alcohol or any controlled substance, or substance purported to be a controlled substance, to another person.
- Intimidation or assault of another student or staff member, including sexual harassment (overt sexual comments and/or inappropriate touching) or other forms of unlawful harassment.
- Instigating, leading, conspiring, taunting, harassing, encouraging or refusing to disperse (leave the scene) when instructed to do so, or otherwise influencing by action, word, omission or intimidation, whether directly or indirectly, someone to violate school rules or commit a crime within the jurisdiction of the school.

- Carrying, possession, or use of a firearm on school premises, school-provided transportation, or areas of facilities while being used exclusively by public, or private schools.
- Possession or use of other weapons or explosive devices, described as articles commonly used to inflict bodily harm and/or to intimidate other persons (knuckles, switchblade/butterfly knives, chains, clubs, stars, pellet guns, pocket knives, nunchaku sticks, etc.), or articles which are designed for other purposes but which are used to inflict bodily harm and/or intimidate.
- Commission of a misdemeanor under Washington law including, without limitation, use to inflict bodily harm and/or to intimidate other persons, selling and/or giving to another person: pepper spray, tear gas or other personal spray devices; sniffing glue or other toxic vapors; opening a sealed letter intended for another; attempting to commit a gross misdemeanor; malicious mischief where damage to the property is less than \$50; criminal trespass in the second degree; failure to disperse and disorderly conduct.
- Commission of a criminal act classified as a felony or a gross misdemeanor under Washington law including, without limitation, arson, assault/battery, harassment, possession of an explosive or firearm, and theft/burglary/robbery.

SYSTEM OF SUPPORT FOR STUDENTS

In an effort to provide effective guidance and support to students and families, **Concrete School District** will implement Integrated Student Supports to promote student academic success. This may include a wide variety of supports aimed at addressing academic and non-academic barriers to achievement. We believe every student can learn and thrive if given the right guidance and support.

The following is a brief summary for disciplinary guidelines. It is neither comprehensive nor absolute. In some cases, a range of consequences is given.

CD – Classroom Detention	LD – Lunch Detention	ASD – After School Detention
PN – Parent Notification	PM – Parent Meeting	RPC – Required Parent Conference
WRN – Warning	SR – Student Reflection	CA - Corrective Action
RJP – Restorative Justice Project	RES – Restitution	SC – Student Contract
BIP – Behavior Improvement Plan	SAP – Substance Abuse Program	EM-Emergency Removal
ISS – In School Suspension	STS – Short Term Suspension	OSS – Out of School Suspension
AC – Academic Contract	BC – Behavior Contract	MD – Mediation/Comm. Circle
AP – Alternative Placement	SSR – Student Support Referral	CICO - Check In/Check Out

STUDENT SUPPORT LEVEL OF INTERVENTIONS/RESOLUTIONS

BEHAVIOR EXPECTATIONS	LEVEL I	LEVEL II	LEVEL III
 CSD Policies & Procedures Leadership Matrix Student Handbook Review Classroom Respect Agreement Implement best practices Trust Behaviors (Leader in Me) 	 Reminder Redirection Review of expectations Warning Think Sheet/Reflection Break Location change Pressure Pass Student conference Document interventions Monitor effectiveness Phone parent Detention (teacher/lunch) Parent Teacher Conference Office Referral Administrative Corrective Action: may include Tier I actions and/or PN, RJP, LD, SR, SC, MD 	 Phone Parent or Guardian Detention (Teacher/Lunch) Parent Teacher Conference Office Referral Administrative Corrective Action: may include all staff corrective action, Required Parent Conference (RPC), PN, RJP, LD, SR, SC, MD, STS, ISS, Student Support Referral 	 Phone Parent or Guardian Detention (Teacher/Lunch) Parent Teacher Conference Office Referral Administrative Corrective Action: may include all TIER II corrective action, and/or any of the following: RPC, RJP, ISS, OSS, AP Note: Emergency Removal Recommendations may be considered for violent or repeated offenses.

BEHAVIOR INFRACTIONS MATRIX

BEHAVIOR	LEVEL I	LEVEL II	LEVEL III
Absence	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Acceptable Use Policy (Technology)	~	✓ (Repeated or severe)	
Aggressive Behavior	✓	✓ (Repeated or severe)	
Alcohol - Distribution*		✓ (SAP)	*
Alcohol - Possession*		✓ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)
Alcohol - Use*		✓ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)
Arson*		✓	✓
Assault - Staff		✓	✓ (Repeated)
Assault - Student		✓	✓ (Repeated)
Auto Misuse	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Battery - Staff			✓
Battery - Staff with Injury*			~
Battery - Student		✓	✓ (Repeated)
Battery - Student with Injury*		~	~
Bus Infraction	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Bullying, Cyberbullying, Harassment, Intimidation*		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)
Campus Disruption		✓	✓ (Repeated)
Cheating/Plagiarism	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Classroom Disruption	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Closed Campus	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Controlled Substance – Distribution*		✓ (SAP)	✔ (Repeated)
Controlled Substance – Possession*		✓ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)
Controlled Substance – Use*		✔ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)
Controlled Substance – With Intent*		✔ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)
Disregard of Rules and Regulations	~	✔ (Repeated)	

Drug - Distribution*		✓ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)	
Drug - Possession*		✓ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)	
Drug – Use*		✓ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)	
Disrespect	~	✓ (Repeated or severe)		
Dress Code	~	✓ (Repeated)		
Drug Paraphernalia	~	✓ (Repeated) (SAP)		
Electronics/Cell phone	~	✓ (Repeated)		
Extortion		✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Fighting		~	✓ (Repeated)	
Firearm			✓ Mandatory Emergency removal	
Fire Alarm Pull		✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Forgery/Dishonesty	~	✓ (Repeated or severe)		
Gambling		✓		
Gang Involvement/Display*		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)	
Graffiti*		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)	
Habitual Truancy		✓		
Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Cyberbullying*		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)	
Hazing		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)	
Health Regulations		✓	,	
Hitting		✓		
Immoral Conduct		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)	
Inappropriate Conduct	~	✓ (Repeated)	✓ (Repeated or severe)	
Inappropriate Language	~	✓ (Repeated)		
Intimidation, Harassment, Bullying, Cyberbullying*		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)	
Inappropriate Touching		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)	

Insubordination/Defia	✓	✓ (Repeated or	
Misuse of Property	✓	severe)	
No-Show Detention	<u> </u>	✓ (Repeated)	
No-Show Office	<u> </u>	✓ (Repeated)	
Nuisance Item	<u> </u>	✓ (Repeated)	
Outbursts		▼ (Repealed)	
	~	•	
Personal Communication Device	•	✔ (Repeated)	
Possession of Weapon(s)*		~	✓ (Repeated)
Possession of Weapon(s) with Injury*			~
Possession of Weapon(s) with Threat*			✓
Public Display of Affection (PDA)	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Sexual Assault*		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)
Tardiness	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Unprepared for Class	✓		
Unsafe Behavior	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Tardy Lockout/Sweeps	~		
Technology Use Policy	~	✔ (Repeated)	
Telecommunication/ Cell phone	~	✔ (Repeated)	
Threat - Student*		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)
Threat - Staff*		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)
Threat - School*		~	✓ (Repeated or severe)
Tobacco/Vape Distribution*		✓ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)
Tobacco/Vape - Possession		✓ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)

Tobacco/Vape - Use		✓ (SAP)	✓ (Repeated)
Trespassing *		✓	✓ (Repeated)
Truancy	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Unacceptable Language	✓	✓ (Repeated)	
Unacceptable School Behavior	~	✔ (Repeated)	
Vandalism *		~	✔ (Repeated)
Verbal Abuse		✓	✓ (Repeated)
Verbal Confrontation		✓	✓ (Repeated)
Violent/Dangerous behavior		~	✓ (Repeated or severe may result in ME)
Weapon/Firearm			✓ Mandatory Emergency removal

^{*}Law Enforcement may be contacted

RCW <u>28A.600.015</u> <u>Emergency removals and suspensions—Rules incorporating due process—Short-term and long-term suspensions—Emergency removals—Discretionary discipline</u>

SUBSTANCE USE *We care deeply about your health and expect all students to be engaged learners. We believe substance use impacts a student's ability to be healthy and to engage fully in their learning. We expect all students in our school to refrain from using or possessing any kind of substance, including tobacco, vapes, e-cigs, cannabis, cannabis products, alcohol, and other illicit substances, including prescription drugs not prescribed to them by a physician. Students can access support for substance use by connecting with our Student Assistance Professional.

STUDENTS AND FAMILIES HAVE A RIGHT TO APPEAL A DECISION, IT IS CALLED "DUE PROCESS"

DUE PROCESS

Discipline is nurtured and in place to build better citizens for the future. Each student will be granted his or her full legal rights of:

- Notification, either written or verbal, of any charges against him/her.
- Defending himself/herself against any charges, with adequate legal and/or parental counsel
- Appealing, within given periods of time, any decisions or action taken to correct a disciplinary problem, as provided by the Constitution and Statutes of the State of

Washington and the United States. An overview of the appeal process is available in policy at the district level.

All procedures must be conducted in a fair, reasonable and expedient manner. Only reliable and factual information may be used in determining the outcome of each situation. Refer to School Board Policy #3241.

GRIEVANCE/HEARING/APPEAL INFORMATION

Type of Discipline	Grievance , Hearing, Appeal	Person(s) Responsible	Timeline	Manner of Informing the District that an Appeal or Grievance is Desired	Timeline	Manner of Informing the District that an Appeal or Grievance is Desired	Timeline
Discipline	Grievance	School Principal, School Employee, Adult Student or	ASAP	Letter of grievance to the	Two days	Letter and/or oral grievance to	Ten days
		Student and his/her Parent(s)/Guardians		Superintendent		the Board of Directors	
Short-Term Suspension	Grievance	School Principal, School Employee, Adult Student or	ASAP	Letter of grievance to the	Two days	Letter and/or oral grievance to	Ten days
		Student and his/her Parent(s)/Guardians		Superintendent		the Board of Directors	
Long-Term Suspension	Hearing	Hearing Officer, Adult Student or Student and his/her Parent(s)/Guardian(s)	Three days	Written Appeal to the Superintendent	Three days	Written appeal to the Board of Directors	Ten days
Emergency Removal	Hearing	Hearing Officer, Adult Student or Student and his/her Parent(s)/Guardian(s)	Ten days	Oral or Written Appeal to the Superintendent	Three days	Written appeal to the Board of Directors	Ten days
Emergency Removal	Hearing	Hearing Officer, Adult Student or Student and his/her Parent(s)/Guardian(s)	Ten days	Written Appeal to the Superintendent	Three days	Written appeal to the Board of Directors	Ten days

GENERAL HANDBOOK INFORMATION

ACADEMIC INTEGRITY

Academic integrity can be defined as the pursuit of scholarly activity in an open, honest and responsible manner. We expect that all students will uphold a high standard of ethical behavior in all academic endeavors. This means that students will be honest and sincere in putting forth their best effort in all academic work produced. Any work submitted by a student will be taken as a guarantee that the thoughts and expressions are the student's own, unless when properly credited to another. Students are never to engage in, or tolerate in others, cheating, plagiarizing or any deceptive misrepresentation of their schoolwork. To protect the rights and maintain the trust of honest students, the faculty will communicate high standards of integrity and reinforce them.

CHEATING DEFINED

According to the Funk and Wagnall's' Standard Dictionary of the English Language, to cheat is, "to deceive and act dishonestly." Cheating includes, but is not limited to:

- Obtaining test or quiz materials prior to assessment without instructor's knowledge.
- Inappropriate use of graphing calculators, programmable watches, palm pilots, cell phones, and other computer or electronic devices.
- Sharing student work that should be individually/independently produced.
- Using crib notes during test situations.
- Substituting another source, such as Cliff Notes, in place of completing an assignment.
- Discussing information about a quiz or test with students who have not completed the assessment.

PLAGIARISM DEFINED

According to Webster's New International Dictionary of the English Language, to plagiarize is "to steal or purloin and pass off as one's own the ideas, words, artistic productions of another; to use without due credit the ideas, expressions, or productions of another." The MLA Handbook defines plagiarism as "the use of another person's ideas or expressions in your writing without giving proper credit to the source."

Plagiarism can be viewed as a continuum. At one end is the use of a few phrases or lines of text without citation or with incorrect citation. More serious actions could include use of multiple paragraphs of someone else's work—whether a published work or that of a peer—the use of significant portions of text without citation, or with incorrect citation, or use of copyrighted graphics without permission or proper citation. More serious than that would be submitting someone else's work, in its entirety, as the student's own. Repeat violations will be viewed as exceptional misconduct.

Students with questions on proper citations should seek assistance from their teacher. It is the responsibility of the student to follow proper MLA guidelines and ask for help when needed. Plagiarism is cheating. It is academically dishonest as well as ethically offensive.

LEARNING WITH INTEGRITY

Teachers design learning activities and assessments designed to enhance the academic competence of students. All students will be expected to do their own work, whether it is on assignments, papers, projects, quizzes, tests, etc. Any student violating this trust will be subject to serious consequences.

- 1st Offense: Teacher will respond to the incident with appropriate in-class consequence(s)/possible detention and failure on assignment or test, and parent contact. Notification of the cheating will be entered in the student's discipline file.
- Further Offenses: Teacher will respond to the incident with appropriate in-class consequence(s) as before. If cheating has occurred in the same class as the first offense, a conference with the principal will be required. Loss of points on assignment or test and/or further disciplinary action may also occur.

ACCIDENTS/INJURIES

The procedures to be followed after any injury are listed below, except for emergencies. Unless these procedures are followed, protection under insurance cannot be granted.

- 1. Immediately report all accidents to the adult in charge or the main office.
- 2. Upon notification the certified or classified staff in charge will complete an accident report at the time of the accident.

ACTIVITIES

The Concrete High School provides a variety of activities for students. The school staff encourages students to get involved in as many activities as they are able to handle. This is an excellent opportunity for students to develop skills that often are not available in the classroom.

ASB CARD

Student ASB cards are available in the main office. Every Concrete High School student should support his/her school by purchasing an ASB card. Ticket takers will admit all ASB cardholders FREE to all home games and at reduced prices on away games. The ASB card supports the ASB. Students involved in ASB activities are required to purchase an ASB card for \$30. Students doing sports are also required to pay a separate \$30 activity fee. Please write separate checks for these fees. (See "Athletics" on next page.) Fees are required to be paid prior to the student participating in the sport or activity.

Students are encouraged to participate in any of the following extra-curricular (ASB) activities:

Pep Band Cheerleading
National Honor Society Athletics
Student Government FBLA or FCCLA
Varsity in Volunteerism Robotics

ACTIVITY CODE

The community, the Concrete School Board of Education, and the staff follow and support the Activities Code. A copy is available in the main office. This code is one of the strong contributors to the development of good attitudes and sportsmanship. Participants in activities should read and understand it thoroughly.

ELIGIBILITY FOR EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

Qualifying for eligibility is required for all interscholastic activities and travel. Inter-scholastic activities are those that involve student participation and/or competition between two or more schools. For a student to participate he/she must meet all the eligibility standards of the Washington Interscholastic Activities Association and the district policy.

ASB OFFICES

The governing officers of the Associated Student Body shall be President, Vice-president, Secretary, Treasurer, and School Board Representative. All officers must be passing their classes in accordance with the Athletics/Activities Code. The President must be an incoming senior. Incoming sophomores through seniors can hold all other offices. Elections for ASB officers will be held each spring with one general election. Each candidate shall fill out a qualification form drawn up by the election committee. Qualification forms will be turned in to the Activities Coordinator by the due date, or the student name will not appear on the ballot. The future freshman class will vote for ASB officers.

ATHLETICS

Participation in interscholastic athletics at Concrete High School is a privilege and the WIAA, the Northwest Middle School League, the Northwest 2B League (high school), and our own District Athletic Code and Standards govern participation. Students are to follow the standards that are set forth in the code. During the school year, eligible students may take part in the following athletics depending on grade level (some sports are not available to middle school students):

<u>FALL</u>	WINTER	<u>SPRING</u>
Football	Boys' Basketball	Baseball
Volleyball	Girls' Basketball	Softball
Cross Country	Wrestling	Track

During each season, students may also participate as a team manager(s), game statisticians, line referees (volleyball and soccer), running the clock, and team mascot.

ACTIVITIES FEE

All students participating in sports or an activity must pay a \$30 activity fee (pay-to-play) as well as purchase an ASB card. (See "ASB card" on the previous page). Fees are required to be paid prior to the student participating in the sport or activity.

ATHLETIC LETTER

Each varsity coach will determine the players who will receive an athletic letter. The Athletic Director will have the final decision in determining awarding athletic letters.

ASSEMBLIES

LISTENING ASSEMBLIES

This requires that the audience participate and support the presenters in the following way:

- 1. Be respectful
- 2. Be responsible
 - No talking at all.
 - Sit up. Be attentive. Do not eat or do distracting things.
 - Applaud at appropriate times. Do not hoot or yell.
 - During music presentations, talking interferes with the audio experience.
 - Remember that at an assembly we are judged not as an individual but as a school, and a community.
 - If you would like other kinds of assembly opportunities, get involved with student government.

PEP ASSEMBLIES

- 1. Be respectful
- 2. Be responsible
 - You are encouraged to cheer and yell at appropriate times and are not to make derogatory remarks.
 - When performances are occurring such as music, cheers, or chants, you are expected to participate.

BULLETINS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

The school staff will read a daily bulletin of student and staff information. School staff will also post the bulletin in the main office. If a student wishes for the staff to publish their item in the printed bulletin, the staff must receive it in the main office no later than the day prior to publication, and it must be approved by the club's advisor AND the principal.

CAFETERIA--BREAKFAST AND LUNCH * ALL STUDENTS EAT FOR FREE *

The Concrete School District is participating in a federal meal program called Community Eligibility Provision (CEP). This program provides all students a nutritious breakfast and lunch at no cost, regardless of family income. However, some of the education programs the district provides are funded from state dollars that require our school to collect household information for all students attending CEP schools. The Family Income Survey will capture this information and ensure the district/school receives all entitled funding. Please contact the District Office at 360-853-4000 if you have questions.

As directed by the State Auditor's Office, there will be no charging of any type for the first meal. However, students will have to pay for all second meals, ala carte purchases, or additional milk.

Second Meal Prices: Breakfast \$1.50; Lunch \$2.95; \$.60 for additional milk

CELL PHONES

Telecommunication devices shall be turned on and operated only before and after the regular school day and during the student's lunch break, unless an emergency situation exists that involves imminent physical danger or a school staff authorizes the student to use the device. Students shall not use telecommunication devices in a manner that poses a threat to academic integrity, disrupts the learning environment or violates the privacy rights of others. – School Board Policy 3245.

Schoolwide usage indicator: Red/Yellow/Green indicators

Red = No cell phone use

Yellow = w/permission of the teacher

Green = usage permitted for academic purposes.

Teachers and staff are permitted to confiscate telecommunication devices, cell phones, etc. when a student is in violation of the policy.

- 1st Offense: the first offense will result in the item being confiscated until the end of the regular school day and may be picked up in the office (by the student).
- 2nd Offense: The second violation will result in a parent-required pick up in the office.
- 3rd Offense: The third violation will result in the student losing the privilege of bringing their device to school. *NOTE: Students are not permitted to leave class to use their cell phone. The teacher may send the student to the office to make the call.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS

Please notify the office of changes to the following information:

- New address or new home and/or work telephone numbers
- Change in parent or guardian
- Change in emergency contact person
- Change in e-mail address

CHECK WRITING POLICY

When paying for items at school, please make checks payable to Concrete High School. Due to the State Auditor's requirement, it is the District's policy to accept checks in the amount of the purchase only. Checks over the purchase price cannot be accepted. We cannot cash checks for students.

CLOSED CAMPUS

By School Board Policy, our school is a closed campus. Students are to remain on campus (see "High School Campus Definition") from time of arrival until the close of the school day. Violation of this policy will result in progressive discipline.

COMMENCEMENT CEREMONY

The Commencement ceremony is an opportunity for students, parents, relatives, and friends to celebrate a student's successful completion of Concrete High School graduation requirements. Participation in graduation is not a requirement for receiving a diploma. In order to participate in the Commencement ceremony, graduates must have completed all check-out procedures of the high school office; be cleared of all fines and fees; and not owe any detention. All graduates are required to attend graduation practice and be on time. Students who miss graduation practice may not participate in the commencement ceremony. Appropriate dress and behavior are required to participate in award ceremonies, Baccalaureate, and graduation ceremonies.

COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

The Concrete High School administration recognizes that students and parents may have concerns regarding the professional staff, support staff, or the instructional program. In general, most complaints can be resolved by informal discussions between the citizen and the staff member. Should the matter not be resolved, the principal shall attempt to resolve the issue through a conference with the citizen and the staff member.

The following school district procedures (Board Policy 4220) apply to the processing of a

The following school district procedures (Board Policy 4220) apply to the processing of a complaint which cannot be resolved in the manner described above:

- A. If the problem is not satisfactorily resolved at the building level, the citizen should file a written complaint with the superintendent which describes the problem, and a suggested solution. The superintendent should send copies to the principal and staff member.
- B. The principal and staff member shall respond to the superintendent in writing or in person.
- C. The superintendent shall then attempt to resolve the matter through a conference with the citizen, staff member, and principal.
- D. If the matter is still not resolved, the superintendent shall present the issue to the board. If the complaint is against a staff member, the complaint shall be handled in executive session in the presence of the staff member. The board shall attempt to make a final resolution of the matter. Any formal actions by the board must take

place at an open meeting. If such action may adversely affect the contract status of the staff member, the board shall give written notice to the staff member of his/her rights to a hearing.

COUNSELING-GUIDANCE

Guidance services are available for every student in the school and include assistance with educational planning, interpretation of test scores, occupational information, study skills help, help with home, school, and/or social concerns, or any question the student would like to discuss with the counselor. Students should contact counselors directly to arrange for an appointment. All students' records are available through the counselor's office.

DANCES

- Dances are intended for Concrete School District students.
- Guests must obtain a signed permission slip from the Principal and/or advisor.
- Age limit for high school dances is 19 years of age.
- Middle School students will not attend High School dances.
- High School students will not attend Middle School dances.
- School authorities generally close the doors to the dance one (1) hour after the dance begins.
- Once inside, school authorities will NOT allow students to LEAVE AND RETURN without permission of the supervisor.
- All school rules and regulations apply at all extra-curricular activities.
- No bumping or grinding dance techniques.
- No backpacks or large purses/handbags will be allowed.
- Those attending dances are expected to follow the school dress code and to dance appropriately.
- School authorities will not admit to the dance any student who appears to be under the influence of drugs or alcohol. If a student appears to be under the influence of drugs or alcohol, the school authorities will contact the supervisor of the event as well as the student's parents, and the police officer on duty.
- The District reserves the right to test students it suspects are under the influence of a controlled substance or alcohol.

HOMECOMING

The Homecoming Dance generally takes place on a Saturday night. Although the structure differs from year-to-year, it is generally a dance for which couples dress up. Homecoming royalty is determined by vote and recognized at the dance. Homecoming is for students grades 9-12.

<u>TOLO</u>

The Tolo is held in the spring of the year.

SENIOR PROM

The Senior Prom is typically held in May. This is a <u>formal</u> dance. Formal attire excludes jeans, and other forms of casual, everyday clothing. Prom royalty is determined by vote and recognized at the dance. The Senior Prom is for students grades 9-12.

DRESS CODE AND ACCESSORIES

Students are expected to maintain a high standard of personal dress. The following are examples what is not permitted and examples of what is permitted with regulations:

CSD Student Dress Policy No. 3224

For the purpose of this policy, a material and substantial disruption of the educational process may be found to exist when a student's conduct is inconsistent with any part of the educational mission of the school district. *Prohibited conduct includes the use of, lewd, sexual, drug, tobacco or alcohol-related messages, gang-related apparel.* The uniforms of nationally recognized youth organizations, and clothing worn in observance of a student's religion, and/or heritage are not subject to this policy.

The superintendent shall establish procedures providing guidance to students, parents, and staff regarding appropriate student dress in school or while engaging in extracurricular activities. Such procedures shall ensure that any student wearing, carrying, or displaying gang-related apparel, or exhibiting behavior or gestures which symbolize gang membership, or causing and/or participating in activities which intimidate or affect the attendance of another student shall be asked, with notice to his or her parents, to make appropriate corrections and be subject to discipline if the corrections are not undertaken.

Not permitted:

- Pajamas, blankets, stuffed animals, bath robes, slippers (outside of spirit week events)
- Spiked necklaces, spiked wristbands, spiked belts, or spiked jewelry
- Spaghetti straps, halter tops, tank tops, bikini tops, and muscle shirts
- Visible bra straps
- Hoodies worn on the head while indoors
- See through material, fishnet, or holes in the mid-thigh through torso areas
- Any visible chest, cleavage, low-cut shirts, low-slung pants
- Exposed midriff, including when students raise their hand
- Visible undergarments, waistbands, or sagging pants
- Strapless, backless, and off shoulder garments

Permitted with regulations:

- Sleeves are not required, but the armholes must conform to t-shirt dimensions and may not be enlarged or expose the chest or midriff.
- Short dresses, skirts, and shorts must cover the upper half of the thigh whether standing or seated (fingertip length).
- Appropriate shoes with hard soles for the activity involved are required. You may not substitute socks and/or house slippers in place of shoes.



The shaded portion of this figure represents front and back views of appropriate coverage. These parts of the body must be covered sitting, standing, bending, and reaching. Cleavage or undergarments should not be showing. Holes in clothing in the shaded areas are not permitted.

Students should use good taste on dress and grooming. The school expects students to follow good health practices in personal hygiene (bathing) and to wear clean clothes.

You will be asked to cover up with clothing or the discipline policy will take effect. If the student refuses to submit to this reasonable request, he/she will call home to have proper clothes brought or supplied with sweatshirts

or sweatpants from the office and asked to cover up. Repeated violations will follow progressive discipline. The principal or his/her designee has final say on what is appropriate.

DRIVING/PARKING

Campus driving regulations are for the safety and convenience of all people on campus. It is important that all drivers abide by local, county, and state laws, and observe the posted signs while driving on campus. Students are to park only in the student parking lot in front of the district office. All fire lanes must be kept clear or the vehicle will be towed.

Maximum speed limit on campus is 10 m.p.h.

Violations of the school driving/parking regulations may result in the following actions:

- 1. Driving privilege suspended and/or police called
- 2. Short/long term suspension

DROPPING/ADDING CLASSES

Dropping/Adding classes require approval of the counselor and parents. Students must make class changes within five days of the beginning of the semester. A student wishing to change a class must remain in his/her original class until the office makes the change and the counselor's office issues a Class Change Form.

DRUGS OR ALCOHOL USE/POSSESSION (PROCEDURE UNDER DEVELOPMENT)

We care deeply about your health and expect all students to be engaged learners. We believe substance use impacts a student's ability to be healthy and to engage fully in their learning. We expect all students in our school to refrain from using or possessing any kind of substance, including tobacco, vapes, e-cigs, cannabis, cannabis products, alcohol, and other illicit substances, including prescription drugs not prescribed to them by a physician. Students can access support for substance use by connecting with our Student Assistance Professional.

MINOR IN POSSESSION LAW

The law provides that any juvenile, age 13 or over, but under age 18, who is convicted of "Minor in Possession" or "Minor in Consumption" violations of alcohol and/or illegal drugs, will not be able to obtain a driver's license or instruction permit from the Department of Licensing until the age of 17 or one year, whichever is longer. For a second conviction, the revocation period is until the age 18 or one year, whichever is longer.

The purpose of this legislation is to deter juveniles from the unlawful use of alcohol and drugs. It is felt that the loss of the driving privileges (a thing most teenagers prize very highly) may cause them to think twice before becoming involved with alcohol and drugs. Consequently, the revocation of the driving privilege is not a motor vehicle-related violation. Unlawful use of alcohol or drugs anywhere, anytime, (including here at school) could cause revocation.

ELECTRONIC DEVICES:

Use of radios, music players, electronic games, cell phones, or other electronic devices are <u>not</u> permitted in the classroom during school hours unless the teacher gives the student permission. These items will be allowed during student lunch breaks. Students may also use

these items before and after school. The school and district will not be responsible for locating or replacing lost/stolen devices.

Teachers are permitted to confiscate electronic devices, and students must hand them over when a teacher requests. The refusal of handing them over will be considered insubordination and will result in a referral to administration. If such refusal becomes a repeated offense, the administration has the right to keep the device until a parent picks it up, or the student could be banned from using such devices at school altogether.

1st Incident – Warning

2nd incident – Confiscation

3rd Incident – Required Parent Conference

EMERGENCY DRILLS

We will practice emergency drills throughout the school year. In the event of an evacuation due to actual fire, earthquake, or other emergency, students are required to stay with their classroom teachers. In the event of an emergency during lunch, **students are to follow CHS adult directives**. Remember to stay calm and quiet so that every can hear instructions from the person in charge of the emergency. Follow the instructions of supervising adult and rescue personnel during and after the drill or evacuation.

Safety Considerations

- Hoodies are not to be worn on the head while in school buildings so staff are able to identify students/staff from a distance
- Students/staff cannot wear headphones, earbuds, earplugs, etc. during the school day. This enables emergency personnel or staff to direct students to safety in a timely and effective manner.

ETIQUETTE

Remember there are many people—staff and students alike—sharing our campus, and your behavior reflects not only on yourself, but on everyone at our school. You can help by doing the following:

- Clean up after yourself—in the cafeteria, in the classroom, in the hallway, and everywhere you go.
- Treat others with respect—say please, thank you, and excuse me, give your attention to speakers in class or at assemblies, etc.
- Step to the side to have conversations during passing time so you do not block the pathway of others.
- Move about in the hallways and on campus in calm manner, etc.

FAMILY/STUDENT ACCESS

The program called Family Access (found on our website www.concrete.k12.wa.us) provides students and parents access to a variety of student information, such as attendance, grades, food service balance and history, and student and family demographics. Once on the district website, select the "Parents" menu and click on the "Family Access" link. You will need a login and password to access your student's information. Please contact the high school office for your access. Last year's password and login will still work, even if you transferred from the elementary school. Teachers are encouraged to have their grades updated on a weekly basis for all students including athletic and activity grade checks.

FIELD TRIPS

School officials may plan field trips for groups of students throughout the school year. Field trips enhance the district's total educational program. School officials must carefully plan trips and they will follow the guidelines that the Principal or his or her designee will establish. Prior to approval of any field trip plans, the plans must show evidence that they take into consideration funding, timeliness, and the educational benefit. NOTE: All school rules, eligibility criteria, discipline, conduct rules, etc., applies during any school travel that the school sponsors.

CONDUCT ON TRIPS

While participating in school-sponsored activities, while a guest at another school or while engaged in an activity, the district requires all students to conduct themselves properly. A student shall obey the rules, regulations, and directions that the coach, the supervisor, the chaperone, or hosting school may have or give. School officials will deal with infractions in accordance with guidelines in other sections of this manual.

For severe infractions of the rules, school officials may send students home immediately at parent or guardian expense. School officials will not allow students sent home at parent or guardian expense to participate in school activities for the remainder of the school year. Upon returning home, the student will have the opportunity to appeal the decision to the Principal. If the student is found in noncompliance with the behavior expectations of the host school, the host school's student handbook, or local coach, school officials will impose the appropriate penalty.

OTHER RULES

- 1. Unless the supervising teacher has a signed consent waiver from the parent or guardian, students will travel to and return from events with the supervising teacher.
- 2. If school officials discover that a student is missing, the supervising teacher will:
 - a. Contact the principal or his/her designee.
 - b. The principal or his/her designee will contact the parent or guardian.
 - c. If the supervising teacher is unable to contact the principal or his/her designee, the supervising teacher will attempt to contact the parent.
 - d. The teacher will notify the proper authorities (security police, City police, State Troopers) and will report the student as missing.
 - e. The teacher will continue the trip with the remaining students.
- 3. The provisions that include school officials sending a student home at parent expense shall remain in full force.

FINES

Students who do not pay their fees or fines will not receive school records of any kind. Students not paying fines will be allowed to register for classes only after everyone else has registered. The school will charge some fees to students for material costs in some courses. The school will charge fines for lost or damaged library books, textbooks, sports uniforms, sports equipment, and un-cleaned lockers. Until the fines are paid, the school will not release report cards and transcripts. If a student has an outstanding fine, he/she may not participate in the graduation ceremony.

FIRE DRILLS

The principal or his/her designee will assure that each room has a sign showing the proper route to evacuate the building. Students should be as quiet and orderly as possible as they leave the building. If complications arise or normal exits are blocked, students will follow the

instructions of school officials. False alarms are dangerous to the safety of students and other school personnel and students who pull the alarms as a prank are subject to school discipline. They are also illegal and local law enforcement could be contacted.

Safety Considerations

- Hoodies are not to be worn on the head so staff are able to identify students/staff from a distance
- Students/staff cannot wear headphones, earbuds, earplugs, etc. during the school day. This enables emergency personnel or staff to direct students to safety in a timely and effective manner.

GANG AFFILIATION/SYMBOLS

Gang activity or displaying symbols of gang affiliation is prohibited. A "gang" means a group that consists of three or more persons, has identifiable leadership, and on an ongoing basis, regularly conspires and acts in concert mainly for criminal purposes. Gang symbols include the use of hand signals, handwriting, and or the presence of apparel, jewelry, accessories, graffiti, or manner of grooming which by virtue of its color or design, arrangement, trademark, symbol, alteration, or any other attribute denotes membership in a gang.

GRADES MAILED HOME

Grades are mailed home at the end of each quarter. The end of the quarter is approximately 9 weeks. At the mid-point of the quarter, staff are required to notify parents of those students receiving a "D" or "F" grades. Any parents requesting more frequent notification need to work with each individual teacher. High school students' semester grades are placed on official high school transcripts, which are a permanent record, and remain on file with the district for life. Transcripts are used to get into college, the military, and for employment.

Schoolwide Grading Policy

All letter grades for high school students, except for F, earn credit towards graduation. G.P.A. points will be assigned as follows:

Grade	High	Low	GPA
Α	100.00%	92.50%	4.0
A-	92.49%	89.50%	3.7
B+	89.49%	86.50%	3.3
В	86.49%	83.50%	3.0
B-	83.49%	79.50%	2.7
C+	79.49%	76.50%	2.3
С	76.49%	73.50%	2.0
C-	73.49%	69.50%	1.7
D+	69.49%	66.50%	1.3
D	66.49%	59.50%	1.0
F	59.49%	00.00%	0.0
I	00.00%	00.00%	0.0
NC	00.00%	00.00%	0.0
W	00.00%	00.00%	0.0

A "Pass" grade or "P" earns credit but does not impact the GPA. A "No Credit" or "NC" grade does not earn credit nor impact the GPA. An "Incomplete" or "I" grade does not earn credit and counts as an "F" until the course work is completed by the prescribed deadline.

COURSE GRADE WEIGHTS: The grades you earn in high school will directly impact their plans after graduation, including scholarships, colleges applications, internships, etc. In an effort to create a fair, accurate, simple, and consistent grading policy the grade weights below will allow for a true reflection of the grade a student earns. The graded weights will be utilized schoolwide.

Assignments & Quizzes	40%
Professionalism	10%
Tests & Projects	40%
Final Exam	10%

GRADES: WHAT THEY SAY ABOUT YOU

- A Consistently shows mastery of the material being studied by scoring in the higher percentiles on tests. Shows insight and imagination concerning the subject. Goes beyond normal class requirements in work accomplished showing high interest and accomplishment. Work may be characterized as superior.
- **B** Good worker who shows consistent interest in the subject. Approaches mastery of the subject and shows desirable growth. Consistently scores above average in tests and other areas of class work. Participates in class activities and strives to work efficiently in independent study.
- C Does average work but does not attain subject mastery or show consistent growth. Seldom works beyond normal requirements of the class. Shows average initiative and resourcefulness; usually does not work independently with efficiency. May be an erratic performer, scoring well on one facet of the material and poorly on another.
- Works at a low performance level. Either has low ability in the subject matter, cares little about it, or does not prepare for class work and thus performs poorly. Test scores are consistently low. Initiative and interest are generally lacking, thus poor work is seldom corrected or made up.
- Fails to meet the minimal requirements for the course. Consistently failed or nearly failed all tests. Has done failing work in most other areas of class work, and has made little or no effort to correct the situation.



GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Concrete High School credits for graduation: All students who earn a Concrete High School diploma will have <u>24.0 credits</u>. A student will receive a <u>.5 credit</u> for each class which meets <u>90 hours</u> or its equivalent in one semester and for which a student received a passing grade.

ENGLISH	4.0 CREDITS
9 th Grade Language Arts	1.0
10 th Grade Language Arts	1.0
11th Grade Language Arts	1.0
12 th Grade Language Arts	1.0
SOCIAL STUDIES	3.0 CREDITS
CWP, American Government	1.0
US History	1.0
World History, Sociology, Psychology	1.0

*Washington State History: Taken in the 7th or 8th grade. (Needed to graduate, but does not count for high school credit.) Out of state students who enroll must have a state history course from another state or take an on-line or independent study course in Washington State History in order to be eligible for graduation.

MATHEMATICS	3.0 CREDITS
-------------	-------------

Algebra I, Algebra II, Geometry, Pre-Calculus, Calculus, Financial Algebra

SCIENCE 3.0 CREDITS

Science 9, Science 10 (Biology), Food Science, Physics

HEALTH AND FITNESS 2.0 CREDITS

PE 9, Body Conditioning, Healthy Choices (1/2 credit only)

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION

1.0 CREDITS

Independent Living, Healthy Choices (1/2 credit only), Info. Processing, Computer Applications, Culinary Arts, Woodshop, Yearbook, Financial Algebra (if not used for Math), Business Communications (if not used for English)

FINE ARTS 2.0 CREDIT

Art, Choir, Band, Strings/Guitar

WORLD LANGUAGE 2.0 CREDIT

Spanish 1 and Spanish 2

ELECTIVES 4 CREDITS

Non-core classes such as Woodshop, PE, Band, Art, and Teacher Assistant (juniors and seniors only) can be taken year-after-year. Generally, no more than one credit per year as a teacher assistant will be possible. After all state and district requirements are met, most classes may be taken as an elective credit.

24.0 TOTAL CREDITS

REQUIRED ELEMENTS OF YOUR HIGH SCHOOL AND BEYOND PLAN

- 1) Identification of your career goals using a career interest inventory.
- 2) Identification of your educational goals.
- A course plan that meets state and local graduation requirements, aligns with your career and educational goals, and documents your chosen graduation pathway(s).
- 4) As part of the course planning process, students must be informed of, and provided access to, Dual Credit and College Bound Scholarship information and document any completed Career and Technical Education (CTE) equivalency courses.
- 5) Evidence you received information about state and federal financial aid options.

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS - STATE TESTING AND OTHER

In addition to the local graduation requirements and those set by the State Board of Education (SBE), students must complete a High School and Beyond Plan (HSBP), earn credits toward graduation, and successfully complete one or more pathways in order to earn a high school diploma:

- 1. Meet or exceed the graduation standard established by the SBE on the statewide high school assessments in ELA and mathematics;
- 2. Complete and qualify for college credit in dual credit courses in ELA and mathematics;
- 3. Earn high school credit in a high school transition course that meets specific requirements in ELA and math;
- 4. Earn high school credit, with a C+ grade, or receiving a 3 or higher on the AP exam, or equivalent, in specified AP, IB, or Cambridge international courses in ELA and mathematics, earning a 4 or higher on IB exams;
- 5. Meet or exceed the scores established by the SBE for the mathematics portion and the reading, English, or writing portion of the SAT or ACT;
- 6. Meet a combination of at least one ELA option and at least one mathematics option established in the previous bullets;
- 7. Meet standards in the Armed Services Vocational Aptitude and Battery (ASVAB); and
- 8. Complete a sequence of career and technical courses, including those leading to workforce entry, state or nationally approved apprenticeships, or postsecondary education, that meet specific criteria.

GUESTS

Guest speakers must be pre-approved by the principal 48 hours prior to a classroom visit. Guests are required to check in at Main Office and receive a visitor's badge before proceeding to the classroom. For more information about guests and visitors, see the "Visitors" heading in this handbook.

HANDBOOK CHANGES

Changes in the Student Handbook may be made during the school year by the school authorities. Such changes will be made available to students and parents on the website.

HARASSMENT/INTIMIDATION/BULLYING/CYBERBULLYING/TEEN DATING VIOLENCE/DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

The Concrete School District is committed to a safe and civil educational environment that is free from harassment, intimidation or bullying of any student.

Any physical, verbal, or written act of abuse, violence, threat, harassment, intimidation, vulgarity, profanity, derision, or hazing between students will not be tolerated. Such behavior will result in disciplinary action and may be grounds for immediate suspension or emergency removal.

Any incident should be reported to a counselor, administrator, or other staff member without fear of retaliation. Be advised that bystanders overhearing offensive conversations or actions are entitled to protection under the harassment law. Students and staff who are offended, threatened, or intimated by the actions of others have the right to file harassment complaint as a third-party victim.

HEALTH SCREENING

State law requires periodic screening of students for potential health problems. The school provides screening examinations related to vision and hearing.

HEALTH SERVICES

If a student becomes ill in school, he/she should report to the office personnel. No one should go into the health room without permission from their teacher and the office. Students can only spend that class period in the sick room. When the bell rings for the next period, students must report to the next period. If after one period in the sick room, a student is unable to return to class, the school staff will contact the student's parent(s). Once the school staff has contacted the parent, and appropriate arrangements are made for the student to return home, the student will be sent home.

HIGH SCHOOL CAMPUS DEFINITION

All areas inside the school buildings, covered area at middle school, grass area by the parking lot, grass area between technology building and high school, grass in front of high school building, or on west end of high school building. OFF LIMIT AREAS: Road, underneath the school, trails through the woods, trail leading down to the road, parking lot, rocks along the road. The parking lot is off-limits during the school day to protect student vehicles from possible theft or vandalism. Students found in the parking lot will be considered truant (skipping).

HONORS AND AWARDS

AWARDS ASSEMBLY

The administration and staff present many awards and certificates of recognition at the Annual Awards Assembly (usually near the last day of school). The school urges all students, parent, and alumni to attend and to give recognition to the students who did outstanding work throughout the year.

HONOR ROLL

For students who earn a GPA of 3.2 and above in any given semester.

PERFECT ATTENDANCE AWARD

The school will present a special award to those students who have missed no school days.

PRINCIPAL'S LIST

For students who earn a GPA of 3.7 and above in any given semester.

STUDENT(S) OF THE QUARTER

Each quarter, the principal or his/her designee will honor a high school student for maintaining a 3.2 grade point average, being consistently prepared for classes, not having any detention or unexcused tardies or absences, and demonstrating good citizenship.

*Academic Awards are handled by the National Honor Society Advisor

INSURANCE

Parents are primarily responsible for their children's health care. The district does not provide medical care or insurance for a student injury that may occur while attending school or participating in school-sponsored activities. The district can provide information on student school accident insurance. Parents may purchase this additional insurance as they choose. If students or their parents wish to purchase school insurance, forms are available in the main office.

INTERNET USE

Students who may have occasion to use the Internet must sign the District Internet Use Agreement. (See Appendix A) Violation of the District Internet Use Agreement will result in loss of internet privileges and possible disciplinary action. Violations include, but are not limited to, using a login and password other than your own and accessing inappropriate sites.

LATE ARRIVAL/EARLY DISMISSAL

Students with late arrival may come to campus no sooner than 10 minutes prior to their first class. Students with Early Dismissal must leave within 10 minutes of the end of their last class. Students may see their administrator if extenuating circumstances exist.

LICE POLICY

Because lice are rarely a medical problem nor does it pose a public health threat, the Concrete School District will implement the following procedure:

- 1. School employees shall report all suspected cases of head lice to the health assistants or school nurse.
- 2. If nits or live lice are found the parent/guardian shall be notified by the end of the day via phone, email, and/or a note sent home with the student. The child found to have lice does not have to be excluded from the classroom before the end of the day. When a child is found to have lice, the nurse or secretaries will notify other buildings so that siblings may be checked for lice. Students will be allowed two days of excused absences in order to remove the live lice and nits before they return to school. Staff is willing to work with individual families if needed. Parents need to bring their child to the office to be rechecked by our health aide before going back to the classroom.
- 3. Parents/guardian shall be provided information about head lice, methods to eliminate infestation and directions to examine household contacts for lice and nits.
- 4. The school nurse may examine other students most likely to have had direct head-to-head contact with the affected student.
- 5. Parents/guardians will be encouraged to verify treatment as soon as possible after notification.
- 6. Staff shall maintain the privacy of students identified as having head lice.
- 7. The bus garage will be notified when children are sent home for lice. The bus driver will not transport until the child is admitted back into class. Children must be brought back to school by the parent or guardian and must be rechecked before they are readmitted. School staff will work with the district and parents to recheck students on a regular basis.

LOCKERS:

Lockers are the property of the school district and are subject to search when reasonable cause exists. The student has the responsibility to see that his/her locker is kept locked and in good, usable condition. The school staff will assess damages to lockers with a minimum \$10 fine imposed for excessively damaged lockers. No stickers, writing, etc. is allowed on the outside of the lockers, except for Cheerleading spirit tags. Anyone found abusing, or defacing lockers may lose the use of the locker.

OTHER THINGS TO CONSIDER IN THE USE OF STUDENT LOCKERS:

- Never leave valuables in the lockers.
- Never tell anyone the combination.

- No one will have a locker reassigned unless the current one is damaged and not in useable condition.
- Please direct your problems with a locker to the main office.
- Concrete High School will not reimburse students for items stolen from lockers.
- Leaving all valuables at home is the best safeguard against theft.

LOST AND FOUND

Materials found on the campus should be turned into the main office. Lost materials will be stored in the Main Office for a semester and then donated to charity, if not claimed.

Lunch

Students have the opportunity to eat the free lunch provided in the cafeteria daily or bring their own lunch. No outside food will be allowed on campus, no deliveries, etc. Exceptions must be approved by the principal.

MAIN OFFICE 360-853-4015

The following services may be obtained at the Main Office:

Activities Questions	Homework Pickup	Teacher Mailboxes
Attendance Information	Lost and Found	Telephone (to call home)

First Aid Student Insurance Visitor Sign-in

ASB questions go through the main office

Appointments to see the principal are made through the main office

Appointments to see the guidance counselor are made with Kirstin Brooks

MEDICATIONS

The school is unable to give any prescription medication without a written request from a doctor or dentist. This ruling applies to all over-the-counter medication including aspirin, vitamins, cough drops, throat lozenges. However, these do require a doctor's note and all over-the-counter medication needs to be given in the office. Inhalers are categorized as medication and will require written instruction. Students who bring medication to school should have their parent or guardian take it to the office and turn it over to the school secretary. The label on the medicine must contain the name of the student, the name of the doctor prescribing the medicine, and the quantity of the dosage required. If students must carry any form of a non-prescription medication with them, they need to complete a form in the office.

MESSAGES

Our counselors and administrators are always willing to deliver messages to students regarding family emergencies (i.e. serious health issues). Please do not disturb the classroom environment with the delivery of notes, flowers, balloons or reminders to students. <u>All such</u> deliveries will be held in the main office until the conclusion of the school day.

NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY

The National Honor Society is a school organization that focuses on academics and community service. The honor society advisor and review panel will invite students to join the NHS.

PESTICIDE NOTIFICATIONS, POSTING AND RECORD KEEPING

The Superintendent is directed to develop procedures to assure that the District complies with the requirements of law regarding pesticide notification, posting and record keeping. This includes procedures for the annual notification of staff and parents of the District's pest control policies and methods; pre-notification of staff and parents of pesticide applications; posting of sites of pesticide applications; and record keeping, including an annual summary report of pesticide usage. See Board Policy 6895

REPORT CARDS

Report cards come out at the end of each semester. Progress reports come out at the midsemester point.

Report cards and transcripts are held if students have outstanding fines such as overdue library books, textbooks, or athletic uniforms that have not been turned in, etc.

RUNNING START

Please check in with the high school counselor to take care of all required paperwork.

SEARCH & SEIZURE

To maintain order and discipline in the schools and to protect the safety and welfare of students and school personnel, school authorities may search a student, student lockers or student automobiles under the circumstances outlined below and may seize any illegal, unauthorized, or contraband materials discovered in the search. A student's failure to permit searches and seizures as provided in this policy will be considered grounds for disciplinary action.

PERSONAL SEARCHES

All students shall be free from unreasonable searches of their persons, clothing, and other personal property. However, a student may be subject to search by school officials if reasonable suspicion exists to suspect that the search will yield evidence of a student's violation of the law or school rules governing student conduct. Two (2) adults must be present for all personal searches.

A student's person and/or personal effects (e.g. purse, cell phone, book bag, etc.) may be searched whenever a school authority has reasonable suspicion to believe that the individual student is in possession of illegal or unauthorized materials (e.g. cigarettes, drugs, stolen items) or has violated or is violating a law or school rules.

If a pat-down search of a student's person is conducted, it will be conducted in private by a school official of the same sex and with an adult witness present, when feasible. If extreme emergency conditions require a more intrusive search of a student's person, such as a situation where the student is believed to be concealing something that may be of immediate danger to the student or to other students, such a search may only be conducted in private by a school official of the same sex, with an adult witness of the same

sex present, and only upon prior approval of the school principal or other personnel designated by the superintendent, unless health or safety of the student will be endangered by the delay.

LOCKER SEARCHES

Student lockers are school property, and always remain, under the control of the school; however, students are expected to assume full responsibility for the security of their lockers. School authorities, for health and safety reasons, may conduct periodic general inspections of lockers at any time without notice, without student consent, and without a search warrant.

School officials may also search lockers when they have reasonable purpose of returning school property or for cause to believe that items are concealed in the locker that violate the law or school rules. When school officials have reasonable cause to believe the locker contains prohibited items, they may open the locker and search the through the contents.

AUTOMOBILE SEARCHES

Students are permitted to park on school premises as a matter of privilege, not of right. The school retains authority to conduct routine patrols of student parking lots and inspections of exteriors of student automobiles on school property. The interiors of student's vehicles may be inspected whenever a school authority has reasonable suspicion to believe that illegal or unauthorized materials are contained inside. Such patrols and inspections may be conducted without notice, without student consent, and without a search warrant.

SEIZURE OF ILLEGAL MATERIALS

If a school official's search yields illegal or contraband materials, such findings shall be turned over to the proper legal authorities for ultimate disposition.

SCHOOL BUSSES & PASSES

Students who ride the school bus to and from school are expected to follow all rules and directions of the bus driver. (See Bus Rules and Procedures in this handbook) Each student is responsible to catch the bus at the designated location and time. Students who ride the bus to school and then do not attend classes will be reported as truant and bus privileges will be questioned. Students who need to ride a different bus or get off at a different stop must bring a note signed by a parent to the Attendance Office by lunch of the date the bus pass is needed. Bus passes will not be issued at the end of the school day.

SKILLS CENTER - NORTHWEST CAREER AND TECHNICAL ACADEMY

The NWCTA is located on the campus of Skagit Valley College and offers preparatory training in high-demand, high-wage, or regionally specific career areas taught by industry experts. Students are able to take advantage of state-of-the art facilities and authentic learning opportunities.

In most programs, students attend year-long programs either a morning or afternoon session equivalent to three consecutive high school periods daily. A variety of classes offer a blended delivery model similar to Running Start, where high school and college learners will be receiving instruction simultaneously. The Academy is tuition free for high school students; however, some programs may have industry related costs/lab fees.

Concrete School District provides transportation to and from only the afternoon session and generally leaves the campus at 10:35AM and returns to campus at about 3:00. Please note that this is after the afternoon busses home have already departed to take students home. Academy students must make their own arrangements to be taken home after they get to the campus. Please visit the Academy website at www.nwtech.k12.wa.us for more details and see the high school counselor if you want to sign up for Academy classes.

SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES

Federal and State laws require that the Concrete High School find and provide a free and appropriate public education to all disabled school age individuals (ages 3-21) residing in the district. Students with certified disabilities may require specialized or modified materials, equipment, instructional programs, and related services. In all such instances, the district must provide the educationally related services to the individual in accordance with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).

In conjunction with local health care providers, district personnel conduct an annual "Child Find Screening" every fall. While the district makes a concentrated screening effort every fall, "Child Find Screening" services are available throughout the school year. Anyone who knows of a child who may need screening is encouraged to contact the District's Special Education Coordinator.

SIGNS/FLYERS:

If students have a special notice to post, they must post it on tack-board, or brick areas around the building. The Principal or designee must approve all signs/flyers advertising school-sponsored events. The school staff will remove any unapproved sign/flyer, or any sign/flyer posted on painted walls. All items need to be approved by principal to be posted with a *signature or initials*.

TOBACCO USE/POSSESSION

We care deeply about your health and expect all students to be engaged learners. We believe substance use impacts a student's ability to be healthy and to engage fully in their learning. We expect all students in our school to refrain from using or possessing any kind of substance, including tobacco, vapes, e-cigs, cannabis, cannabis products, alcohol, and other illicit substances, including prescription drugs not prescribed to them by a physician. Students can access support for substance use by connecting with our Student Assistance Professional.

TECHNOLOGY USE

Concrete School District is pleased to offer students access to technology such as computer software, computer hardware, electronic communication, and Internet access. The smooth operation of these technologies relies upon the proper conduct of the users who must understand and follow strict rules. These rules are provided so that both students and parent have a clear understanding of the student responsibilities regarding technology use in the school setting. This agreement is legally binding and indicates that the signers have read and agree to abide by the terms and conditions herein. The building administrator will determine penalties for violations. *(See the Technology Use Agreement section of this handbook.)

TEXTBOOKS

All basic texts are loaned to students for use during the school year. Textbooks are to be kept clean and handled carefully. The student's name, grade, and school are in the book in case it is misplaced. A fine is charged for abuse, misuse, or lost books.

TRANSFERRING/WITHDRAWALS

If a student withdraws from school and does not enroll in another school, or if a student is withdrawn for lack of attendance, the student will receive an F grade (no credit) in each of their classes for the quarter and will not be able to re-enroll until the next semester. Students withdrawing from school must have a parent/guardian come to the office and fill out a withdrawal form. Students must have this form signed by each of his/her teachers to show that all obligations on books, lab fees and equipment have been met. The completed withdrawal form must be returned to the office. The school may choose to hold records if this procedure has not been completed.

VALUABLES

Students are encouraged not to bring valuable items to school. We caution students not to bring large amounts of money or valuables, such as rings, bracelets, etc., to school. The school is not responsible for personal property. Students are expected to have a locker and utilize the locks issued to them to prevent theft.

VISITORS

Parents and guardians are always welcome to visit the school. All visitors must enter through the front doors and report to the office, sign in and receive a Visitor's Pass before going anywhere else on campus. Before leaving campus, sign out and return the Visitor's Pass. A 2-day notice **and teacher permission** are required for classroom visitation. Visitors may make an appointment to conference with a teacher during their planning period or between 2:45 and 3:00 pm. Students from other schools may not visit the high school without permission of the principal. If permission is granted, the visitor must wear a "visitor" nametag. **Teachers may exclude at their discretion any student visitor from their classroom.**

VOLUNTEERS

Prior to volunteering, a person needs to fill out a volunteer packet and return it to the District Office for approval.

WEAPONS

Carrying, possession, displaying, brandishing, or use of a firearm on school premises, school-provided transportation, or areas of school facilities is strictly prohibited. See page 47. Also strictly prohibited is the possession or use of other weapons or explosive devices, described as articles commonly used to inflict bodily harm and/or to intimidate other persons (knuckles, switch blade/butterfly knives, chains, clubs, stars, pellet guns, pocket knives, nunchaku sticks, etc.), or articles which are designed for other purposes but which are used to inflict bodily harm and/or intimidate. Students in violation of school weapons policies may be suspended or even expelled.

WITHDRAWAL

If a student withdraws from the Concrete High School, he/she must return and check back in all books and district property. Until all materials are returned, and financial obligations are paid, school officials will not issue report cards or any other records, including student records.

Students who have withdrawn from school are not permitted on campus during the school hours or to participate in student activities.

YEARBOOKS

Yearbooks can be paid for in the office. The price will be determined by the Yearbook Advisor. Waiting until June to purchase your yearbook may put you at risk of not getting one, as supplies can be limited.

Student Name:	Grade:	Advisor:
Professionalism Grade		

WORK HABITS

On-Task or Off-Task – Displays initiative, flexibility, and time management.

Minimal Effort 0	Initial Effort 1	Progress 2	Proficient 3	Exemplary 4
Resistant to begin new tasks. Poor use of time. Rarely adjusts well to new situations. Hardly ever brings all necessary supplies to class.	Resistant to begin new tasks without significant teacher intervention. Needs frequent reminders to use available time. Rarely brings all necessary supplies to class. Has	Inconsistently begins and remains on task without prompting until the class is over. Sometimes uses time effectively. Occasionally brings all necessary supplies to class. Adjusts to	Usually begins and remains on task without prompting until the class is over. Generally uses time effectively. Usually brings all necessary supplies to class. Adjusts well to new	Consistently begins and remains on task without prompting until the class is over. Maximizes time available. Consistently brings all necessary supplies to class and
	difficulty adjusting to new situations.	new situations in an inconsistent manner.	situations.	responds favorably to changing situations.

BEHAVIOR

Attentive or Disruptive – Works effectively with teacher and classmates and contributes productively to the class.

Minimal Effort 0	Initial Effort 1	Progress 2	Proficient 3	Exemplary 4
Consistently disruptive to group efforts. Consistently does not follow classroom rules or disregards teacher's requests.	Consistently demonstrates inappropriate group behaviors. Frequently does not follow classroom rules or ignores teacher's requests.	positive group behaviors.	Consistently works well with others. Consistently contributes to the success of group efforts. Consistently follows classroom rules or teacher's requests with little or no hesitation.	Facilitates positive group dynamics. Demonstrates leadership that plays a significant role in the success of group efforts. Follows classroom rules or teacher's requests without hesitation.

QUALITY OF WORK

Best Effort or Minimal Effort – Strives to master the material and does the best quality of work on every assignment.

Minimal Effort 0	Initial Effort 1	Progress 2	Proficient 3	Exemplary 4
Minimal effort and consistently poor quality of work. Consistently refuses to work through difficult problems and makes no attempt to master the material.	Only puts forth minimal effort and rarely does quality work. Rarely demonstrates a willingness to work through difficult problems and rarely attempts to master the material.	Occasionally puts forth best effort but often settles for less than quality work. Inconsistent in striving to understand the material and often gives up when working on difficult problems or gives up when trying to master the material.	Usually puts forth best effort to produce quality work. Usually strives understand the material and works most of the time through difficult problems and usually tries to master the material.	Consistently puts forth best effort to produce quality work. Consistently strives to understand the material and works through difficult problems until the assignment is mastered.

DEMEANOR

Agreeable or Argumentative – Is respectful when confronted about being off-task, disruptive, or not doing best work.

Minimal Effort 0	Initial Effort 1	Progress 2	Proficient 3	Exemplary 4
Uncooperative and disrespectful in working with others. Consistently complains about teacher's requests.	Improvements needed in treating others with respect. Frequently complains about teacher's requests.	classmates and teachers. Follows teacher's requests	Consistently is respectful. Follows teacher's requests with little or no complaint.	Facilitates a respectful environment and sets the example to others.

PRESENCE

Attendance & Punctuality – Attends class on time and ready to work; stays in class the entire period; and makes up missed work.

Minimal Effort 0	Initial Effort 1	Progress 2	Proficient 3	Exemplary 4
Excessive absences or tardies. Refuses to accept responsibility of making up work. Frequently leaves class without permission.	Absences or tardies limit opportunities to contribute in class and consistently impacts classroom performance. Makes up missed work only after frequent reminders. Occasionally leaves class without permission.	contribute in class and	Absences or tardies rarely impacts opportunity to contribute in class and rarely impact classroom performance. Usually responsible in seeking out and making up missed work. Does not leave class without permission.	Absences or tardies do not limit opportunity to contribute in class and do not affect classroom performance. Consistently responsible in seeking out and making up missed work. Never leaves class.

BEHAVIORAL NORMS

CONCRETE HIGH SCHOOL BEHAVIORAL MATRIX

	Common Areas (Cafeteria, Outside, and Assemblies)	Hallways	Restrooms/ Locker Rooms	Classrooms	Digital/Electronics
Perseverance	Be aware of your surroundings Use time wisely Cafeteria (Voice Level 2)	Focus on destination (Voice Level 2)	Manage personal needs efficiently (Voice Level 2)	Work through difficulties Maintain a growth mindset Complete assignments to the best of your ability	Chromebooks charged and present daily
Respect	Use positive and appropriate language Follow directions Maintain personal space	Be considerate of classes in session WALK on right Observe personal space and property Maintain a clear path	Respect the privacy of others Keep facilities clean Maintain personal space	Be kind to all Respect diversity of thought Respect your own, others, and school property	Appropriate and positive electronic communications only Take care of Chromebooks and other school electronics
Integrity	Leave it better than you found it Tell the truth Seek to help others	Maintain cleanliness of hallways Keep displays of affection appropriate to school setting Refrain from using technology (cell phone and music/speakers)	Refrain from using technology	Do your own work Take charge of and contribute to your own learning	Practice self-discipline and focus on assigned task
Determination	Remind others of expectations	Use passing time efficiently Be on time	Report supply needs Report damage and inappropriate behaviors	Do more to achieve more Problem-solve Have a "can-do" attitude	Electronics are for learning Cell phones before school, during lunch, and after school only
Engagement	Interact positively Focus on the purpose of the space	Look up Be aware Notice people Greet others positively	Timely return to class or practice	Actively listen Ask questions Put distractions away Be open to collaboration	Encourage others to be responsible and stay on task

Voice Levels: 0 = Silence, 1 = Whisper, 2 = Normal Talking Voice, 3 = Presentation Voice, 4 = Cheering Voice

Student Name:	 Grade:	Advisor:	

Annual Notification to Parents Regarding Confidentiality of Student Records

Confidentiality of education records is a right of public-school students and their parents. Two federal laws, the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), provide for this right. Under these laws, "education rights" means those records that are: (1) directly related to a student; and (2) maintained by an educational agency or institution or by a party acting for the agency or institution. Education records are maintained on every child enrolled in a public school. The types of information gathered and maintained includes, but is not limited to: the student's and parent's names, address and telephone number; the student's date and place of birth, date of enrollment in the school, records from previous schools attended, attendance record, subjects taken, grades, school activities, assessment results, number of credits earned, immunization records, disciplinary records, if any, correspondence from parents, and child find and other screening results, including hearing and vision screening results.

In addition, for children with disabilities, education records could include, among other things, evaluation and testing materials, medical and health information, each annual Individualized Education Program (IEP), notices to parents, notes regarding IEP meetings, parental consent documents, information provided by parents, progress reports, assessment results, materials related to disciplinary actions, and mediation agreements.

The information is gathered from several sources, including the student's parents and staff of the school of attendance. Also, with parental permission, information may be gathered from additional sources, including doctors and other health care providers.

This information is collected to assure proper identification of a student and the student's parents and the maintenance of accurate records of the student's progress and activities in school. For children with disabilities, additional information is collected in order to assure the child is identified, evaluated, and provided a Free Appropriate Public Education in accordance with state and federal special education laws.

Each agency participating under Part B of IDEA must assure that at all stages of gathering, storing, retaining and disclosing education records to third parties that it complies with the federal confidentiality laws. In addition, the destruction of any education records of a child with a disability must be in accordance with IDEA regulatory requirements.

The federal Family Policy Compliance Office of the U.S. Department of education has provided the following notice of parents' rights under FERPA. In accordance with IDEA, the rights of the parents regarding education records are transferred to the student at age 18.

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and students over 18 years of age ("eligible students") certain rights with respect to the student's education records.

They are:

- (1) The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days of the day the school receives a request for access. Parents or eligible students should submit to the school principal (or appropriate school official) a written request that identifies the record(s) they wish to inspect. The principal will make arrangements for access and notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.
- (2) The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent or eligible student believes are inaccurate or misleading. Parents or eligible students may ask a school district to amend a record that they believe is inaccurate or misleading. They should write the school principal, clearly identify the part of the record they want changed, and specify why it is inaccurate or misleading.

If the school decides not to amend the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, the school will notify the parent or eligible student of the decision and advise them of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing.

(3) The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. One exception that permits disclosure without consent is disclosure to school officials with legitimate educational interests. A school official is a person employed by the school as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel); a person serving on the school board; a person or company with whom the school has contracted to perform a special task (such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist); or a parent or student serving on an official committee, such as disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks.

A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility.

Upon request, a school may disclose education records, without consent, to officials of another school district in which a student seeks or intends to enroll, if the school states in its annual notification of FERPA rights that it forwards records on request.

(4) The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by a school to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the office that administers FERPA is:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue S.W. Washington, D.C. 20202-4605 202-260-3887 Voice 1-800-877-8339 TDD A school may designate information in education records as "directory information" and may disclose it without parent consent, unless notified that the school is not to disclose the information without consent. The law defines "directory information" as follows:

The student's names, address, telephone listing, date and place of birth, major field of study, participation in officially recognized activities and sports, weight and height of members of athletics teams, dates of attendance, degrees and awards received, and the most recent previous educational agency or institution attended by the student.

Educational Programs

TITLE I, A

Title I, Part A is a federal program that serves the unique needs of children — kindergarten to grade 12 — who struggle to learn. Title I programs and services enrich time at school with customized instruction and curricula that helps these students meet academic standards and take an active, engaged interest in what they learn and can do. Please contact Carrie Crickmore at 360-853-4151 if you have any questions.

LAP (LEARNING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM)

LAP programs serve eligible students who need academic support for reading, writing, math, or who need readiness skills to learn these core subjects. With special emphasis on reading literacy in the early grades, schools use their state LAP funds to deliver supplemental services that give these students the strong start they need for academic success. Please contact Carrie Crickmore at 360-853-4151 if you have any questions.

McKinney-Vento (Homelessness)

The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act is a federal law that ensures immediate enrollment and educational stability for homeless children and youth. Please contact Carrie Crickmore at 360-853-4151 if you have any questions.

SECTION 504 COMPLIANCE

The Concrete School District makes every effort to comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 which protects the rights of individuals with disabilities. A child is a qualified disabled person if he or she is between age of 3 to 21 and has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities such as caring for oneself, performing manual tasks, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning and/or working. If you feel that your child is a qualified disabled person outlined above and needs special help in school, please contact Carrie Crickmore at 360-853-4151.

HIGHLY CAPABLE

What is a Highly Capable Learner? A Highly Capable (HC) learner is defined as "a student who has been assessed to have superior intellectual ability as exhibited by cognitive ability, specific academic achievement, and exceptional creativity" (OSPI, 2009).

<u>The Highly Capable Program Consists of What Grade Levels</u>? The Highly Capable program offers enrollment to students K-12.

<u>Identifying Highly Capable Learners</u> Students can be referred to the Highly Capable program by education staff, teachers, and parents. A referral to the Highly Capable program does not guarantee enrollment.

<u>Is Parent Approval Required?</u> YES. Parents are required to give written permission before testing, identifying and placement.

What Type of Testing will be done? Students will be required to participate in several different types of tests. Testing will include but is not limited to the Woodcock Johnson IV, Kaufman Brief Intelligence Test 2 (KBIT2), and SIGS. Tests will be administered by the school psychologist. Additional data will be collected for review: grades, state assessments and district assessments.

What Does the Program Offer? Students identified as Highly Capable will be taught by Highly Capable teachers, who will individualize their instruction to accommodate the educational needs of the identified students. Students enrolled in the Highly Capable program may be provided opportunities for accelerated learning, grouping arrangements that provide intellectual and interest peer group interactions, K-12 cooperative agreements between schools and institutions of higher education, and/or mentorships and career exploration opportunities. Please contact the District Office at 360-853-4000 if you have any questions.

PARENTS RIGHTS TO KNOW

QUALIFICATIONS OF STAFF

A parent's right to know information about a teacher's qualification as required by No Child Left Behind [Section 1111(6) (A) ESEA]:

At Concrete School District, we are proud of our teachers and feel they are ready for the coming school year and are prepared to give your child a high-quality education. As a Title I district, we must meet federal rules related to teacher qualification as defined in the No Child Left Behind. These rules allow you to learn more about your child's teachers' training and credentials. We are happy to provide this information to you at any time, you may ask:

 Whether the teacher med state qualification and certification requirements for the grade level and the subject s/he is teaching.

- Whether the teacher received an emergency or conational certificate through which the state qualifications were waived, and
- What undergraduate or graduate degrees the teacher holds, including graduate certificates and additional degrees, and major(s) or area(s) of concentration.
- You may also ask whether your child receives help from a paraprofessional. If your child receives this assistance, we can provide you with information about the paraprofessional's qualification.

Our staff is committed to helping your child develop the academic knowledge and critical thinking skills that s/he needs to succeed in school and beyond. That commitment includes making sure that all of our teachers and paraprofessionals are highly skilled.

If you have any question about your child's assignment to a teacher or paraprofessionals, please contact the District Office at (360) 853-4000.

Legal Notices

NON-DISCRIMINATION DISCLAIMER

The Concrete School District does not discriminate on the basis of sex, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, sexual orientation including gender expression or identity, the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability in its programs and activities and provides equal access to the Boy Scouts of America and all the other designated youth groups listed in the Title 36 of the United State Code as a patriotic society. The following employees have been designated to handle question and complaints of alleged discrimination:

Affirmative Action Officer
Title IX Officer
Title 1A
Special Education Director
Compliance Coordinator
High School 504 Coordinator
Elementary 504 Coordinator
District Homeless Liaison
Concrete School District's address is 45389 Airport Way, Room 103, Concrete WA 98237.

·

HOW TO FILE A CITIZEN COMPLAINT FOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS

www.k12.wa.us/Title I/ CitizenComplaintFederalPrograms.aspx

CHILD FIND

Child Find is a continuous process of public awareness activities, screening and evaluation designed to locate, identify and refer as early as possible all young children with disabilities and/or children who meet the McKinney-Vento definition of homeless. We are also seeking

nominations for our Gifted Program as well. If you know of a child who lives within the Concrete School District who is newly born to five years old and who might need special education services, or children who might be homeless, or a child you believe is gifted in learning, please contact Leilani Thomas, Executive Director at 360-853-4151.

PARENT INVOLVEMENT OPPORTUNITIES

Anyone who would like to volunteer in our schools (classroom, field trips, library, working committees, sporting events, etc.) may contact the elementary, the high school or the district office for a volunteer application and /or information. You may contact the district office at (360) 853-4000, the elementary (360) 853-8145 or the high school at (360) 853-4015. If you would like more information on the parent involvement policy #4130 you may access our website at www.concrete.k12.wa and then click on parents, Title 1, then click the parent involvement link. We appreciate you interest in volunteering.

DISTRICT WEBSITE

Please visit our district website, <u>www.concrete.k12.wa.us</u>, for more information about your child's school district. If you are not finding what you need, please call your child's principal at (360) 853-4015.

STUDENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

STUDENT RIGHTS

All students have the right to a safe environment and the right to an equal educational opportunity, regardless of national origin, race, and religion, economic status or sex, including being free from sexual harassment.

All students have the right of freedom of speech, freedom of the press, and the right to peaceably assemble.

All students have the right to be secure in person, paper and effects against reasonable searches and seizures.

All students have the right to due process.

Any student, who is aggrieved for any causes, has the right to request an informal conference with the appropriate administrator for the purpose of resolving the matter.

STUDENT RESPONSIBILITIES

All students who attend school in this district shall comply with the written policies, rules and regulations established; shall pursue the required course of studies; and shall submit to the authority of the teachers of the school, subject to such disciplinary and other action as school officials shall determine.

All students must conduct themselves in an appropriate manner so that learning can take place.

All students are expected to develop mature behavior, self-discipline, and personal responsibility.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE STUDENT TO:

- Attend school daily, except when ill, and to be on time to all classes.
- Express his or her opinions and ideas in a respectful manner so as not to offend or to slander others.
- Dress in a manner so as not to be an undue distraction or to interfere with the activities of others.
- Act responsibly always, and to take into consideration the feelings of others. Do not interfere with the rights of others, and exercise self-discipline.
- Conduct him/herself in accordance with school rules, policies, and expectations that regulate student behavior, and act in a manner that will not detract from the education of anyone.
- Be willing to volunteer information in disciplinary cases should the student have knowledge of importance in such a case.
- Take an active part in student government by running for office or conscientiously voting for the best candidates. Make problems known to the administration through the student government.
- Review questions with the teacher concerning assignments and grades before bringing grievances to the principal or his/her designee.
- Review and understand current policies, classroom rules.
- Request a review of grades, assignments, or tests with their teachers.

TITLE I—PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT

- I. The Board recognizes that parent involvement contributes to the achievement of academic standards by students participating in district programs. The Board views the education of students as a cooperative effort among school, parents and community. The Board expects that its schools will carry out programs, activities and procedures in accordance with the statutory definition of parental involvement. Parental involvement means the participation of parents in regular, two-way, and meaningful communication involving student academic learning and other school activities, including ensuring that parents:
 - A. Play an integral role in assisting their child's learning;
 - B. Are encouraged to be actively involved in their child's education at school; and
 - C. Are full partners in their child's education and are included, as appropriate, in decision-making and on advisory committees to assist in the education of their child.
- II. The board of directors adopts as part of this policy the following guidance for parent involvement. The district shall:
 - A. Put into operation programs, activities and procedures for the involvement of parents in all of its Title I schools consistent with federal laws including the development and evaluation of policy. Those programs, activities and procedures will be planned and operated with meaningful consultation with parents of participating children;
 - B. Provide the coordination, technical assistance, and other support necessary to assist participating schools in the planning and implementing of effective parent involvement activities to improve student academic achievement and school performance.
 - C. Build the schools' and parents' capacity for strong parental involvement;
 - D. Coordinate and integrate Title I parental involvement strategies with parent involvement strategies under other programs, such as Head Start, Reading First, Early Reading First,

Even Start, Parents as Teachers, Home Instruction, Preschool Youngsters, State-run preschools:

- E. Conduct, with the involvement of parents, an annual evaluation of the content and effectiveness of this policy in improving the academic quality of the schools served with Title I funds including: identifying barriers to greater participation of parents in Title I-related activities, with particular attention to participation of parents with limited English proficiency, parents with disabilities and parents of migratory children; and
- F. Involve the parents of children served in Title I, Part A schools in decisions about how the Title I, Part A funds reserved for parental involvement are spent.

Legal References: PL 107-110, Section 1118(a)

Management Resources:

Policy News, October 2008 Family Involvement Policy
Policy News, June 2005 Title I Parental Involvement Policy
Policy News, August 2003 No Child Left Behind Update

Technology Use Agreement

Concrete School District is pleased to offer student access to technology such as computer software, computer hardware, electronic communication, and Internet access. The smooth operation of these technologies relies upon the proper conduct of the users who must understand and follow strict rules. These rules are provided so that both students and parents have a clear understanding of the student responsibilities regarding technology use in the school setting. This agreement is legally binding and indicates that the signers have read and agree to abide by the terms and conditions herein. Penalties for violations will be determined by the building administrator.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SAFETY

Access to District information resources is designed in ways that point students to resources, which have been reviewed and evaluated prior to use. While students may be able to move beyond those resources particularly suited to the learning objectives. Students may pursue independent electronic research only if they have been granted parent permission as indicated by parent authorization below. The use of e-mail or other electronic communication, which contains student identifying information, is restricted to the promotion of resource sharing, innovation and communication between educational institutions. All information, data and communication on District equipment is public and, as such, will be monitored and may be removed at the discretion of the District.

DISTRICT POLICY AND LEGAL ISSUES

The use of District-owned and operated technology must be in support of education and research consistent with the educational objectives and mission of Concrete School District. Use of District's network or computer resources must comply with the rules established within each site and/or classroom. Transmission or use of any material in violation of U.S. or State regulation is prohibited. This includes but is not limited to copyrighted material, threatening or obscene material or material protected by trade secret. All software installed on District equipment must be licensed by the District. The use of illegal or unlicensed software on

District equipment is not allowed and will result in removal of the software and may result in prosecution.

THE FOLLOWING ARE NOT PERMITTED:

Sending or displaying offensive messages or pictures, using obscene language, cyber bullying, damaging computers, computer systems or computer networks, violating copyright laws, using another's password, trespassing in another's folders work or files, employing the network for commercial purposes, changing computer settings to personalize the computer, downloading anything off the Internet without the consent of the technology supervisor, moving computers or computer systems components, troubleshooting software or hardware problems, chatting, checking personal email, loading software without tech approval, instant messaging. Violations may result in a loss of access as well as other disciplinary or legal actions.

SECURITY

All District technology resources are public resources used for a broad variety of educational, record keeping and business operations. Security and dependability of these resources is critical. Attempting to violate security, harming or destroying equipment, modifying or misusing other people's information, or attempting to gain unauthorized access to someone else's account will not be allowed. Individual site policies will determine consequences to violations and students will be held accountable for any loss or damage. Specific policies and procedures will be presented to students within each site. Site policies and procedures will be updated regularly to include changes in technology, current issues of concern and other changes as needed.

DUE PROCESS

Questions or concerns regarding the use of technology should be directed to your principal. If concerns are not addressed satisfactorily, a written request for review may be submitted to the Office of the Superintendent. A meeting will be scheduled with the Superintendent or designee as soon as possible.

STUDENT AGREEMENT:

I understand and will abide by Concrete School District's Technology Use Agreement. I further understand that any violation of the regulations above is unethical and may result in school disciplinary action as specified in school disciplinary code, and/or appropriate legal action.

PARENT OR GUARDIAN AGREEMENT:

As the parent or guardian of this student, I have read and agree to this Technology Use Agreement. I understand that this access is designed for educational purposes. I understand the District is taking precautions to reduce access to controversial material. However, I also recognize it is impossible for the District to restrict access to all controversial materials and the District will not be held responsible for materials acquired over the network. I hereby give permission for my child to be issued an account and to use district computers for Internet research.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

Non-Discrimination

Concrete School District complies with all federal and state rules and regulations and does not discriminate in the admission, treatment, employment, or access to its programs or activities on the basis of age, sex, marital status, race, color, creed, national origin, the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability, to the use of a trained guide or service animal by a person with a disability, sexual orientation including gender expression or gender identity, or honorably discharged veteran or military status. This holds true for all students who are interested in participating in educational programs and/or extracurricular school activities, and provides equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups.

Inquiries regarding compliance and/or grievance procedures may be directed to the school district's Title IX/Staff Civil Rights Officer, ADA Officer, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying (HIB)/Student Civil Rights Officer and/or 504 Compliance Officer.

The following **Civil Rights Compliance Coordinators** have been designated to handle questions and complaints of alleged discrimination:

Civil Rights Coordinator: Kristen Fairbank, 360-853-4008
 Title IX Coordinator Kristen Fairbank, 360-853-4008
 Section 504 Coordinator: Kristen Fairbank, 360-853-4008

Other district contacts:

ADA Officer: Kristen Fairbank, 360-853-4008
 Affirmative Action Officer: Kristen Fairbank, 360-853-4008
 Business Manager: Lisa Fenley, 360-853-4003
 Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying

Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying
 (HIB)/Student Civil Rights Officer:

 Personnel Officer:
 Public Records Officer:
 Safety/OSHA/WISHA Officers:

 Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying

 Jaci Gallagher, 360-853-4110
 Shirley Moody, 360-853-4156
 Lynda Stout, 360-853-4155

 Kristen Fairbank, 360-853-4008
 Paul Carter, 360-853-4071

Address: 45389 Airport Way, Concrete, WA 98237

• Secretary, Board of Directors:

You can report discrimination and discriminatory harassment to any school staff member or to the district's Civil Rights Officer, listed above. You also have the right to file a complaint (see below).

Carrie Crickmore, 360-853-4000

- Concrete School District Policy 3210: Nondiscrimination
- Concrete School District Procedure 3210: Nondiscrimination

Sexual Harassment

Students and staff are protected against sexual harassment by anyone in any school program or activity, including on the school campus, on the school bus, or off-campus during a school-sponsored activity.

Sexual harassment is unwelcome behavior or communication that is sexual in nature when:

- A student or employee is led to believe that he or she must submit to unwelcome sexual conduct or communications in order to gain something in return, such as a grade, a promotion, a place on a sports team, or any educational or employment decision, or
- The conduct substantially interferes with a student's educational performance, or creates an intimidating or hostile educational or employment environment.

Examples of sexual harassment:

- Pressuring a person for sexual favors
- Unwelcome touching of a sexual nature
- Writing graffiti of a sexual nature
- Distributing sexually explicit texts, emails, or pictures
- Making sexual jokes, rumors, or suggestive remarks
- Physical violence, including rape and sexual assault

You can report sexual harassment to any school staff member or to the district's Title IX Officer, listed above. You also have the right to file a complaint (see below).

- Concrete School District Policy 3205: Sexual Harassment of Students Prohibited
- Concrete School District Procedure 3205: Sexual Harassment of Students Prohibited
- Concrete School District Procedure 5011: Sexual Harassment of Staff Prohibited
- Concrete School District Procedure 5011: Sexual Harassment of Staff Prohibited

Complaint Options

If you believe that you or your child have experienced unlawful discrimination, discriminatory harassment, or sexual harassment at school, you have the right to file a complaint. Before filing a complaint, you can discuss your concerns with your child's principal or with the school district's Section 504 Coordinator, Title IX Officer, or Civil Rights Coordinator, listed above. This is often the fastest way to resolve your concerns.

Complaint to the School District

1. Write Out Your Complaint: In most cases, complaints must be filed within one year from the date of the incident or conduct that is the subject of the complaint. A complaint must be in writing. Be sure to describe the conduct or incident, explain why you believe discrimination, discriminatory harassment, or sexual harassment has taken place, and describe what actions you believe the district should take to resolve the problem. Send your written complaint—by mail, fax, email, or hand delivery—to the district superintendent or civil rights compliance coordinator.

- 2. **School District Investigates Your Complaint:** Once the district receives your written complaint, the coordinator will give you a copy of the complaint procedure and make sure a prompt and thorough investigation takes place. The superintendent or designee will respond to you in writing within 30 calendar days—unless you agree on a different time period. If your complaint involves exceptional circumstances that demand a lengthier investigation, the district will notify you in writing to explain why staff need a time extension and the new date for their written response.
- 3. School District Responds to Your Complaint: In its written response, the district will include a summary of the results of the investigation, a determination of whether or not the district failed to comply with civil rights laws, notification that you can appeal this determination, and any measures necessary to bring the district into compliance with civil rights laws. Corrective measures will be put into effect within 30 calendar days after this written response—unless you agree to a different time period.

Appeal to the School District

If you disagree with the school district's decision, you may appeal to the school district's board of directors. You must file a notice of appeal in writing to the secretary of the school board within 10 calendar days after you received the school district's response to your complaint. The school board will schedule a hearing within 20 calendar days after they received your appeal, unless you agree on a different timeline. The school board will send you a written decision within 30 calendar days after the district received your notice of appeal. The school board's decision will include information about how to file a complaint with the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI).

Complaint to OSPI

If you do not agree with the school district's appeal decision, state law provides the option to file a formal complaint with the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI). This is a separate complaint process that can take place if one of these two conditions has occurred: (1) you have completed the district's complaint and appeal process, or (2) the district has not followed the complaint and appeal process correctly.

You have 20 calendar days to file a complaint to OSPI from the day you received the decision on your appeal. You can send your written complaint to the Equity and Civil Rights Office at OSPI. You can do this in the following methods.

• Email: Equity@k12.wa.us

• Fax: 360.664.2967

• Mail or hand deliver: PO Box 47200, 600 Washington St. S.E., Olympia, WA 98504-7200

What is Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying (HIB)?

Harassment, intimidation or bullying is any intentionally written message or image, including those that are electronically transmitted, verbal, or physical act, including but not limited to one shown to be motivated by race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, culture, gender, socioeconomic status, sexual orientation including gender expression or identity, mental or physical disability, or other distinguishing characteristics, when an act:

- 1. Physically harms a student or damages the student's property
- 2. Has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's education

- 3. Is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it creates an intimidating or threatening educational environment or
- 4. Has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of the school

What do I do if I suspect my student is experiencing harassment, intimidation, or bullying? What if I am a community member and I observe or receive notice that a student has or may have been the target of harassment, intimidation, or bullying?

- 1. Make a verbal or written report of all harassment, intimidation, and bullying to any staff member.
- 2. The Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying Incident Reporting Form is available in the main office at each school and online for both the elementary and secondary levels.

 Reporting form: Concrete School District Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying

 Complaint Form (3207F)
- 3. You can also make a report with your name or anonymously via the <u>SafeSchools alert</u> system.

Source: Board Procedure 3207P: Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying (PDF)

What is sexual harassment?

Sexual harassment means unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, sexually motivated physical contact, or other verbal or physical conduct or communication of a sexual nature between two or more individuals if:

- 1. Submission to that conduct or communication is made a term or condition, either explicitly or implicitly, of obtaining an education;
- 2. Submission to or rejection of that conduct or communication by an individual is used as a factor in decisions affecting that individual's education, or
- 3. That conduct or communication has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's educational performance, or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment.

Sexual harassment can occur adult to student, student to adult, student to student, adult to adult, male to female, female to male, male to male and female to female.

Source: Board Policy 5011: Sexual Harassment (PDF) and Board Procedure 3207P: Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying (PDF)

What is discriminatory harassment?

Discriminatory harassment includes conduct that is based on a student's status as a member of a protected class and is sufficiently severe, persistent, or pervasive that it limits or denies a student's ability to participate in or benefit from the school's education programs or activities. Source: Board Procedure 3210P: Nondiscrimination (PDF)

What is malicious harassment?

Malicious Harassment means committing malicious and intentional acts because of one's perception of the victim's race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, gender, sexual orientation or mental, physical or sensory disability which:

- 1. Causes physical injury to the victim or another person;
- 2. Causes physical damage to or destruction of the property of the victim or another person; or
- 3. Threatens a specific person or group of persons and places that person, or members of a specific group of persons, in reasonable fear of harm to the persons or property.

Source: Board Procedure 3207P: Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying (PDF)

What preventative work does the district do related to HIB?

The Concrete School District proudly engages in the <u>Leader in Me (FranklinCovey) framework</u>. This framework is being taught at all grade levels, in every school. The Leader in Me framework partners <u>parents and schools</u> to support the whole child. This framework consists of <u>5 Core Paradigms</u> which focus on leadership, potential, change, motivation, and education. Leader in Me prepares students with life-readiness skills necessary to thrive and improves school culture with evidence-based results.

- Leader in Me Overview (PDF)
- <u>5 Core Paradigms (PDF)</u>
- Leader in Me Parent Partnerships (PDF)
- *Source: <u>Leader in Me (FranklinCovey)</u>

Where can I find information on the district's HIB policy?

The school board's Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying <u>Policy 3207 (PDF)</u> and the affiliated <u>Procedure 3207P (PDF)</u> are available on the district website.

I submitted a verbal and/or written report. What's next?

Whenever possible staff who initially receive an oral or written report of harassment, intimidation or bullying will attempt to resolve the incident immediately.

All reports of unresolved, severe, or persistent harassment, intimidation or bullying will be recorded on a district Incident Reporting Form and submitted to the principal or designee, unless the principal or designee is the subject of the complaint.

All reports of unresolved, severe, or persistent harassment, intimidation or bullying will be investigated with reasonable promptness. Any student may have a trusted adult with them throughout the report and investigation process.

For additional information please see section H of Board Procedure 3207P (PDF).

I see that I can make a report anonymously, confidentially, or by disclosing my name. What is the difference?

- 1. **Anonymous:** Individuals may file a report without revealing their identity. No disciplinary action will be taken against an alleged aggressor based solely on an anonymous report. Schools may identify complaint boxes or develop other methods for receiving anonymous, unsigned reports. Possible responses to an anonymous report include enhanced monitoring of specific locations at certain times of day or increased monitoring of specific students or staff. (Example: An unsigned Incident Reporting Form dropped on a teacher's desk led to the increased monitoring of the boys' locker room in 5th period.)
- 2. Confidential: Individuals may ask that their identities be kept secret from the accused and other students. Like anonymous reports, no disciplinary action will be taken against an alleged aggressor based solely on a confidential report. (Example: A student tells a playground supervisor about a classmate being bullied but asks that nobody know who reported the incident. The supervisor says, "I won't be able to address this with the bullies unless you or someone else who saw it is willing to let me use their names, but I can start hanging out near the basketball court, if that would help.")
- 3. **Non-confidential:** Individuals may agree to file a report non-confidentially. Complainants agreeing to make their complaint non-confidential will be informed that

due process requirements may require that the district release all of the information that it has regarding the complaint to any individuals involved in the incident, but that even then, information will still be restricted to those with a need to know, both during and after the investigation. The district will, however, fully implement the anti-retaliation provision of Policy 3207 and Procedure 3207P to protect complainants and witnesses.

Source: Board Procedure 3207P: Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying (PDF)

When and how will I know what disciplinary actions have been taken for the aggressor?

Because of the legal requirement regarding the confidentiality of student records, the principal or designee may not be able to report specific information to the targeted student's parent/guardian about any disciplinary action taken unless it involves a directive that the targeted student must be aware of in order to report violations.

What if I am unsatisfied with the response to my concern?

If the complainant or parent/guardian of the complainant is dissatisfied with the results of the investigation, they may appeal to the superintendent or his or her designee by filing a written notice of appeal within five (5) school days of receiving the written decision. The superintendent or his or her designee will review the investigative report and issue a written decision on the merits of the appeal within five (5) school days of receiving the notice of appeal. For additional information about appeals, please see section I Board Procedure 3207P (PDF).

Students and families should use the district's complaint and appeal procedures as a first response to allegations of harassment, intimidation and bullying. However, nothing in this procedure prevents a student, parent/guardian, school, or district from taking action to remediate discrimination or harassment based on a person's membership in a legally protected class under local, state or federal law. For a list of state or federal agencies to whom a harassment, intimidation or bullying complaint may also be reported please see <u>Section K of Board Procedure 3207P (PDF)</u>.

Who is the district's HIB Compliance Officer and how could I contact that individual?

Jaci Gallagher serves as the district's Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying Compliance Officer. Mrs. Gallagher may be contacted via email at jagllagher@concrete.k12.wa.us or by phone at (360) 853-4110. You may also contact Kristen Fairbank who is the Affirmative Action Officer and Title IX Compliance Officer. Mrs. Fairbank can be contacted by email at kfairbank@concrete.k12.wa.us or by phone at (360) 853-4008.

Sources

- Board Policy 3207: Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying (PDF)
- Board Procedure 3207P: Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying (PDF)
- Reporting form: <u>Concrete School District Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying Complaint</u> <u>Form (3207F)</u>
- Board Policy 5011: Sexual Harassment (PDF)
- Board Policy 3210: Nondiscrimination (PDF)
- Board Procedure 3210P: Nondiscrimination (PDF)
- <u>Leader in Me Framework</u>

CONCRETE HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT HANDBOOK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I, as a Concrete High School student, along with my parent/guardian hereby acknowledge that we have received a copy of the Concrete High School Student Handbook for the 2023-24 school year. We have thoroughly reviewed the contents of the handbook and understand the guidelines, policies, and expectations outlined within.

By signing below, we confirm our commitment to abide by the rules and regulations set for in the handbook. We recognize that it is our responsibility to be aware of and adhere to the policies mentioned in the handbook to ensure a positive and productive academic environment for all students.

We also understand that any updates or revisions to the handbook will be communicated to us by the school or organization and that our continued compliance is expected.

Student Name:		Student Signature:
	(please print)	
Parent Name:		Parent Signature:
	(please print)	
Date:		_